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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEBNRR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present
you the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”).

The Greater China region experienced a slow recovery
from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. Initially, the
easing of restrictions and reopening of borders instilled
optimism for a better consumer market. However, the
anticipated recovery did not materialize as expected.
While industrial output and fixed asset investment showed
some acceleration, the retail sales performance remained
stagnant. Moreover, the troubled real estate industry
in Mainland China, along with worsening investment
returns and growing macro uncertainties such as high
youth unemployment rate, have heightened consumers’
financial uncertainty. This, in turn, has resulted in a more
conservative consumer sentiment especially towards high-
end products, including luxury watches. Consequently, the
Group faced notable operating pressure during the Year.

Despite the challenging market conditions, the Group’s
established brand profile and network, coupled with
stringent cost control measures, enabled it to maintain its
revenue at a similar level, with a slight decrease of 1.8%
year-on-year (“yoy”) to HK$3,639 million (2023: HK$3,705
million). The gross profit slightly decreased by 3.2% yoy
to HK$1,151 million (2023: HK$1,189 million), with gross
profit margin largely remained stable at 31.6% (20283:
32.1%). It is worth noting that the revenue mix underwent
a significant change due to the Covid-19 pandemic, with
the Mainland China surpassing Hong Kong as the Group’s
major revenue contributor. This led to a corresponding
change in the Group’s cost structure, ultimately leading
to a 15.3% yoy drop in profit attributable to owners of the
Company to HK$250 million (2023: HK$295 million).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEEBNRR DN

To show our appreciation for shareholders’ continuous
support and taking into consideration the financial results,
the Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
5.8 HK cents per share (2023: 7.5 HK cents) and a special
dividend of 17.2 HK cents per share (2023: 22.0 HK cents)
for the year ended 31 March 2024. This decision reflects
the Board’s confidence in the Group’s long-term prospects
and its commitment to rewarding shareholders.

Business Review

As at 31 March 2024, the Group operated 44 retail points
(including associate retail stores) in the Greater China
region, along with 1 online store in each of Mainland China
and Hong Kong respectively. Breakdown of retail points
by geographic region is as follows:

Hong Kong =%
Macau S8 P9
Mainland China rh B )
Taiwan &
Total %@E‘I’

Despite the slower-than-expected market recovery, the
Group demonstrated its resilience and adaptability by
maintaining its business and revenue scale in the Mainland
China market, reaching HK$2,571 million (2023: HK$2,560
million). This achievement highlights the Group’s ability to
navigate challenging economic conditions. Throughout the
Year, the Group strategically established several boutique
stores in Mainland China, aiming to improve relationships
with brand owners and expand its network with lower
capital commitment. These initiatives position the Group
for future growth and reinforce its presence in the region.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEBNRR DN

In Hong Kong, the economic challenges were even
more profound, with the 2023 gross domestic product
(GDP) growth falling short of the initially projected 3.4%
guidance, even after a downward revision earlier in
2023. The general retail market experienced fluctuations.
Despite a rebound in Hong Kong retail market in the first
half of 20283, there was an increase in tourism outbound
by the Hong Kong citizens together with a lower-than-
expected number of tourists visiting the city, resulted in
lower local consumption. Furthermore, there has been a
shift in tourists’ visiting behaviour towards seeking more
in-depth experiences rather than traditional shopping
tours, posing additional challenges for the Group. As
a result, the Group’s sales in Hong Kong reported a
decrease of 6.3% yoy to HK$944 million (2023: HK$1,008
million). However, the Group proactively responded to
the difficult retail environment by focusing on network
enhancement and cost control measures to streamline
operations.

One notable strategic move was the comprehensive
revamping and expansion of the shop network in prime
shopping areas across Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China. For example, we have strategically relocated the
Group’s Causeway Bay store to a more bustling area
favoured by younger generation, further diversifying the
target customer demographic. This strategic decision
aligns with the Group’s objective of optimizing its
retail presence by capitalizing on changing consumer
preferences and capturing new market segments. By
establishing a presence in more dynamic and youthful
areas, the Group aims to attract a broader customer base
and enhance its competitive position in the Greater China
region.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEEBNRR DN

Managing operating costs is a critical aspect of the
Group’s efficient operation strategy, particularly on
rental costs which constitute a significant portion of its
overall expenses. The Group monitors closely on store
performance and close down high-rent yet non-performing
stores. During the Year, the Group made concerted efforts
to minimize these costs through renegotiations. In Hong
Kong, the Group leveraged its close relationships with
landlords to secure favourable rent rates for both its new
and existing stores. These negotiations resulted in cost
savings, enabling the Group to optimize its operating
expenses while maintaining its presence in key locations.
Conversely, in Mainland China, the Group experienced an
increase in base rent for the year due to the backdrop of
previous strong sales performance. The decrease in rent
in Hong Kong helped offset the increase, resulting in a
decrease of 5.6% in aggregate expenses related to lease,
amounting to HK$202 million (2023: HK$214 million),
accounting for 24.9% of the overall operating expenses
(2023: 26.9%).

In addition to managing rental costs, the Group
implemented a stringent inventory policy to ensure a
healthy financial position. The Group closely monitors the
inventory level of high-ticket products and replenished
them only when they reach safety stock levels. This
approach helps optimize inventory management, reduce
carrying costs, and mitigate the risk of excess stock.
Yet, following the reopening of border and the relaxation
of Covid-19 policy, various brand owners expressed
more optimistic views of the Mainland China market. As
a distributor, the Group had to adjust the inventory level
accordingly, resulted in a slight increase of 5.0% yoy
in inventory to HK$443 million (2023: HK$422 million).
Nevertheless, this inventory level still represents a
significant improvement compared to that of mid-2022,
indicating the Group’s proactive measures to align its
inventory with market demand.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEBNRR DN

Prospects

Stepping into the second half of 2024, it is expected that
the challenging conditions in the luxury watch industry
may persist. According to the Federation of the Swiss
Watch Industry FH, there have been a significant drop of
22.7% yoy and 25.6% yoy in the amount of Swiss watch
exports to Mainland China and Hong Kong, respectively,
during the first quarter of 2024. This decline indicates
a general slowdown in inventory turnover among
distributors and a prevailing reservation towards inventory
replenishment. On the backdrop of weak 2023 China
economy, this may point towards a challenging luxury
retail market in 2024.

In light of the evolving market dynamics, the Group
maintains an unwavering commitment to prudent financial
management, operational efficiency and cost control
measures. The Group will constantly review and refine its
operational strategies by carefully monitoring inventory
and optimizing lease agreements. This allows it to adapt
swiftly to the changing market conditions and make
informed decisions regarding the opening of new boutique
stores to further expand its network with limited capital
input. The Group will also remain steadfast in enhancing
its service quality through strategic collaboration with
more branded partners to diversify product mix and
leveraging digital platforms for customer engagement.
These efforts aim to drive better customer acquisition
and foster loyalty among existing customers and sustain
its competitive edge in the industry. By combining these
initiatives, the Group strives to generate even greater
value for all its stakeholders while to provide stable returns
to its valued shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEEBNRR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2024, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$1,796 million, compared with HK$1,896 million as
at 31 March 2023. The Group had net current assets of
HK$1,208 million, including bank and cash balances
of HK$899 million as at 31 March 2024, as compared
with balances of HK$1,390 million and HK$1,079 million
respectively as at 31 March 2023. At 31 March 2024 and
2023, the Group had no bank loan and the gearing ratio
(defined as total bank loan on total equity) was nil.

Management considers that the financial position of the
Group is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking
facilities.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group does not face any significant risk from exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2024, our Group employed approximately
596 employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China, of whom approximately 62% were located on
Mainland China.

Our employees’ compensation packages include basic
salary, commission, annual bonus, medical insurance and
other common benefits. They are structured by reference
to the nature of their posts, experiences and performance,
and are reviewed annually based on the Group’s objective
performance appraisal system.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTRGEREEBNRR DN

The Group has allocated significant resources to provide
training programmes to employees to improve their
services to customers. The management team has used
results of a “Mystery Shoppers Programme” conducted by
an independent consultancy firm to tailor-made training
programmes for specific shop and at individual level.

The Group has also developed a series of training
programmes for senior executives with diverse topics
ranging from leadership, personal development and
effectiveness, task and team management. These
programmes enable our senior executives to improve their
management skills and bring in innovative ideas to the
Group.

The Company has adopted (i) a share option scheme
relating to the grant of options to subscribe for shares
of the Company which expired on 2 November 2023;
and (ii) a share award scheme relating to award of
shares of the Company purchased by the trustee or the
administration committee of such scheme out of fund paid
by the Company to eligible persons including directors
and employees of the Group. These schemes enable the
Group to offer valuable incentive to attract and retain
quality personnel and other persons to work to increase
the value of the shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREAREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 54, joined the Group in
1993. He became Managing Director and Chairman of the
Company in March 2003 and February 2021 respectively.
He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from the
University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the brother of
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 62, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is a
sister of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 65, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over
37 years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr.
Lam holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from the University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an independent non-executive
director of CN Logistics International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2130), which is listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael, aged 68, is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been practising
public accountancy in Hong Kong for over 32 years. He
has been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since September 2008.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEAREEE

Mr. SUN Dai Hoe, Harold, aged 61, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director in March
2022. He holds a Master of Administration degree from
The University of British Columbia, Canada. He was
the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades and Industries Limited from 2017 to 2019 and has
been its Advisor since 2020. In addition, he has been
the Chairman of Qualifications Framework, Watch and
Clock Industry Training Advisory Committee since 2022,
a member of Hong Kong Productivity Council’s Watch
and Clock Technology Centre Management Committee
since 2016, and was a member of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council’'s Watches and Clocks Advisory
Committee from 2016 to 2020. In Singapore, Mr. Sun was
the Vice-President of Singapore Clock and Watch Trade
Association from 2010 to 2017 and an independent non-
executive director of Saizen REIT, which was listed on
the Singapore Exchange from 2007 to 2017. He has over
32 years of experience in the marketing and distribution
of watches. He has been an independent non-executive
director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
0131), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since March 2022.

Mr. SIN Nga Yan, Benedict, aged 60, is a director and
general manager of Myer Jewelry Manufacturer Limited.
He is a fellow of CPA Australia, a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of New South Wales, Australia, the Supreme Court
of England and Wales and the High Court of Hong Kong.
He is the Chairman of Trust Fund Committee of Customs
and Excise Service Children’s Education Trust Fund of
Hong Kong Customs and Excise Department. Mr. Sin
is also a member of Committee of Overseers of Wu Yee
Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
member of The Council of The Hang Seng University of
Hong Kong and a member of Hospital Authority, Hospital
Governing Committee of Hong Kong Eye Hospital &
Kowloon Hospital. Mr. Sin is an independent non-executive
director of King Fook Holdings Limited (stock code: 0280)
and Miramar Hotel and Investment Company, Limited
(stock code: 071), both of which are listed companies
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Sze Wing, Kenneth, aged 59, is a director of
our PRC subsidiaries. Since 1 April 2022, his responsibility
has expanded from overseeing the Group’s operation
in the PRC to cover those in Hong Kong and Macau.
He joined the Group in 2013 and has over 30 years’
experience in the watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 66, is the General Manager
responsible for overseeing the retail operation in Hong
Kong. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 44 years’
experience in the watch business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standard
of corporate governance as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company
has accordingly adopted good corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board of Directors
(the “Board”), effective risk management and internal
control, stringent disclosure practices, transparency
and accountability to all stakeholders. It is, in addition,
committed to continuously improving these practices and
inculcating an ethical corporate culture.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company
had complied with the code provisions prescribed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules except for the deviations
explained below in the relevant paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors as
at 31 March 2024 have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year under review.
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THE BOARD
Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance
long-term total return for shareholders. To achieve this
objective, the Board set strategies and directions for the
Group’s activities with a view to achieving sustainable
recurring earning growth and maintaining the Group’s
strong financial profile. The section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” contains discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance for the year under review and
strategies for achieving its future plans.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for
performance of the Company, is responsible for directing
the strategic objectives of the Company and overseeing
the management of the business. Directors are collectively
charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company.

Board Composition

At 31 March 2024, the Board comprised five Directors,
including the Chairman and Group Managing Director,
Group Finance Director, an Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors. Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy, an Independent Non-Executive Director, passed
away on 25 March 2024. On 12 June 2024, the Board
appointed Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 10 to 12.
The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any
direct or indirect material relationship with the Group. In
determining the independence of Directors, the Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is both the Chairman and
Group Managing Director of the Company. He has been
the Group Managing Director of the Company since March
2003 and took up the role of Chairman on 10 February
2021 after Dr. Yeung Ming Biu, the former Chairman,
passed away on 5 February 2021. The Board considers
that he is the most suitable person with the necessary
experience to provide leadership to the Board as well
as to manage the day-to-day operations of the Group.
As the Chairman, he is responsible for the leadership of
the Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its
role and for setting its agenda and taking into account
any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion
in the agenda. Through the Board, he is responsible for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and
procedures are followed by the Group.

As the Chief Executive (Group Managing Director), Mr.
Yeung is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors until Dr. Li Sau
Hung, Eddy, an Independent Non-Executive Director,
passed away on 25 March 2024, and throughout the year
represented over one-third of the Board. One Independent
Non-executive Director has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

On 12 June 2024, the Company appointed Mr. Sin Nga
Yan, Benedict as Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company to comply with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors as at the date of this report
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.18 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmation, considers Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael, Mr.
Sun Dai Hoe, Harold and Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict to be
independent.
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Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year. It also meets on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. Between
scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides information to the Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors had participated in
the consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circulation of relevant
materials, supplemented by additional verbal/written
information or notification from the Company Secretary
and other executives as and when required. Details of
material or notable transactions of subsidiary companies
are provided to the Directors as appropriate. Whenever
warranted, additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision
and draft minutes of meeting in advance of each Board
meeting. With respect to regular meetings of the Board,
the Directors receive written notice of the meetings at
least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, the Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his
or her duty may take independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged
to update their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the
Group through their initial induction, ongoing participation
at Board and Committee meetings, and through meetings
with key members of the management.
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, the composition of REBEE-_ZE_NF=A=+—HBILFE
the Board and the attendance of the Directors at meetings AN ' EXEHEERSEESNARITER

held are set out below: HE e EYI T
2023
Annual
Board General
Meetings Meeting
—E_=
BR=R
Ezgel BEAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (Note) - BOTER T E (BiE) —
Chairman and Group Managing IEREESEEHLE
Director 5/5 Vv
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (Note) — B&EL+ (f1:2) 5/5 v
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain - MEBEE —
Group Finance Director SEHMBESR 5/5 Vv
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIHTEE
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (passed away on ZHFBEHE+ (RN ZNF
25 March 2024) ZAZTRAE) 5/5 v
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael Mk - 5/5 X
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold BARRLEE 5/5 Vv

Note: Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and Madam Yeung Man Yee,  Afit - BOTRSEERBBIBEL L RS -
Shirley are brother and sister.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading
materials to the Directors to help ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on
their roles and functions as directors of the Company. The
Directors complied with the requirements under the code
provisions of the CG Code in respect of CPD for the year
ended 31 March 2024. In addition, Mr. Choi Man Chau,
Michael has participated in CPD programs required by
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
while Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold has participated in CPD
programs provided by external organizers.

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2024
(except the late Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy) have provided to
the Company with details of the CPD training undertaken
by them during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and
the timely preparation and dissemination to the Directors
and Board Committees comprehensive Board agendas
and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and Board
Committees are prepared by and maintained by the
Company Secretary to record in sufficient details the
matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Board Committees, including any concerns raised or
dissenting views voiced by any Director. All minutes are
sent to the Directors and are available for inspection by
any Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring
that the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments relating to
the Group and that it takes these into consideration
when making decisions for the Group. Further he is
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations under the Listing Rules, including publication
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcements and information relating to the Group
and assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in
securities of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required
by the Listing Rules are observed and, where required,
reflected in the annual reports of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Detail analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to
ensure full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
are subject to Board approval in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and the Group
Managing Director, all members of the Board have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretary. Mr.
Lam Hing Lun, Alain has been the Company Secretary of
the Company since 1992 and is also the Group’s Finance
Director.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are
published in a timely manner in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the auditor’s report on
pages 84 to 89.

Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the financial statements of the Company to
ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair
presentation in accordance with Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements
of the Group could be prepared in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable
and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities
within the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparation of the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board, being satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) in respect of the audit fees they charged, the
process and effectiveness of their audit, has resolved
to recommend their reappointment as the Company’s
external auditors at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

During the financial year, the services provided by, and
the associated remuneration paid to, Deloitte were as
follows:

Audit
Taxation and non-audit services
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised of the following members
(all being Independent Non-executive Directors) during
the year and up to the date of this report:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
(passed away on 25 March 2024)
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold
Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict
(appointed on 12 June 2024)

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee,
it is required to oversee the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review the Group’s
preliminary results, interim results and annual financial
statements, monitor compliance with statutory and
Listing Rules requirements, review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of the activities of the Group’s internal audit
functions, engage independent legal or other advisers as
it determines is necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted
by the Board follow the guidelines set out in the CG Code
and are published on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year which
were attended by all then members.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties

and responsibilities under its terms of reference and the
code provisions of the CG Code.
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Financial Statements

The Audit Committee meets with the Group Finance
Director and other senior management of the Group
from time to time to review the interim and final results,
interim and annual reports and other financial, internal
control and risk management matters of the Group. It
considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
management, the Group’s internal and external auditors
with a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It
also meets with the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to
consider their reports on the scope and outcome of their
independent review of the interim financial report and on
their annual audit of the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process. It has received
representations from Deloitte of their independence and
objectivity and holds meetings with Deloitte to consider
the scope of their audit and their fees therefor, and the
scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if
required, to be provided by them. The Audit Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of external auditors.
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The Group’s policies regarding the engagement of Deloitte
for various services are as follows:

e Audit services — Deloitte is engaged to provide
services in connection with the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company,
which are required to be provided by external
auditors.

e Audited related services — include services that
would normally be provided by external auditors but
not generally included in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements, for example, audit of the
Group’s pension plans, due diligence and accounting
advice relating to mergers and acquisitions, internal
control reviews of systems and/or process and
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes (if
any). The external auditors are invited to undertake
these services that they must or are best placed to
undertake in their capacity as auditors.

e  Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services except those services
provided in connection with the audit. The Group
engages the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. Other significant taxation related
work may be undertaken by other professional parties
as appropriate.

° Others services — include, for example, audit or reviews
of third parties to assess compliance with contracts,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations (if any). The external
auditors are also invited to assist the management and
the Group’s internal auditors with internal investigations
and fact-finding in respect of alleged improprieties.
These services are subject to specific approval by the
Audit Committee.
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° General consulting services — the external auditors
are not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it reviews with the Group’s
internal auditors the work plan for their audit together with
their resources requirements, and consider their report
to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internal
controls in the Group’s business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration
by the Audit Committee when it makes recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised of the following
members during the year and up to the date of this report:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (an Independent Non-executive
Director) (passed away on 25 March 2024)

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael (an Independent
Non-executive Director) (appointed on 12 June 2024)

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain (an executive director)

Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold (an Independent Non-executive
Director)

The Committee meets for the determination of the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group. In addition, the Committee
meets as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters.
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The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to assist the Board in achieving its objectives of
attracting, retaining and motivating people of the highest
calibre and experience needed to shape and execute
strategies across the Group’s substantial business
operations. It assists the Group in the administration of a
fair and transparent procedure for setting remuneration
policies including assessment of the performance of the
Directors and senior executives of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Board follow the guidelines set out in the CG Code and
are published on the Company’s website.

The remunerations of Directors and senior executives
are determined with reference to the performance
and profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Bonus are
rewarded to Directors and employees based on the results
of the Group and the individual’'s performance.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
which was attended by all then members.

The Remuneration Committee had reviewed background
information on market data, the Group’s business activities
and human resources issues, headcounts and staff costs.
The Remuneration Committee had also reviewed and
approved the proposed director fees, year-end bonus and
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2024, and made recommendations to the Board on the
directors’ fees for Independent Non-executive Directors
(except they did not participate in the determination of
their own remunerations).
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Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee comprised of the following
members during the year and up to the date of this report:

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
(Executive Director and Chairman of the Committee)
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
(an Independent Non-Executive Director)
(passed away on 25 March 2024)
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael
(an Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold
(an Independent Non-Executive Director)
(appointed on 12 June 2024)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee follow
the guidelines set out in the CG Code and are published
on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year
which was attended by all then members.

Members of the Nomination Committee identify potential
new directors and recommend to the Board for decision.
A director appointed by the Board is subject to election by
shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/
her appointment.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their
qualifications, skill and business experience which the
Directors consider will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Board has adopted a diversity policy to achieve
diversity of board members through consideration of
relevant factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
skill, knowledge, or professional/business experience to
ensure the Board has an appropriate diversity of talents to
contribute to the business of the Group.

The Board’s aim to appoint a new independent non-
executive director with experience in the watch industry to
diversify its membership was achieved by the appointment
of Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold in March 2022.

After Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy passed away on 25 March
2024, the Board appointed Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict as
an Independent Non-Executive Director on 12 June 2024
to further diversity its membership. The Board is expected
to benefit from his extensive business experience as well
as professional knowledge as accountant and solicitor.
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The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Company’s policy on Board diversity
on its annual review for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board,
including the following:

e the independence of his/her view is considered
before appointment of any proposed director;

o channels are established for directors to express
their independent views and input openly, and
confidentially if necessary; and

e each director has independent access to the senior
management of the Company to make informed and
independent decisions and to communicate with the
Chairman directly to express his/her views.

The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms on its annual review for
the year ended 31 March 2024.

Dividend Policy

Code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code relates to disclosure
of dividend policy. The Company does not have a dividend
policy and the Board will decide on the declaration/
recommendation of any future dividends after taking into
consideration a number of factors, including the prevailing
market conditions, the Group’s operating results, business
plans and prospects, financial position and working
capital requirements, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.

Group Risk Management, Internal Control and
Corporate Governance

Role of the Board
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s

systems of risk management, internal control and legal
and regulatory compliance.
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In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board also evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to accept in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic and business objectives.
It also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the
systems of risk management and internal control on an
ongoing basis. Reporting and reviewing activities include
review and approval by the Executive Directors and
the Board of detailed operational and financial reports,
budgets and plans of business operations provided by the
management, review by the Board of actual results against
budgets, review by the Audit Committee of the ongoing
work of internal audit and risk management functions, as
well as regular business review by the Executive Directors
and the executive management team of each core
business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and
practices within the Group and monitors compliance
fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Risk Management

The Group adopts an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework which is consistent with the COSO (Committee
of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission)
framework. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are to provide a clear governance
structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage risks across
its business operations.

The Group’s risk management framework consists of the
Board, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce. The Board determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group has formulated and adopted risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks. At least on an annual
basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies risks
that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the
identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for
those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit
function to assist the Board and the Audit Committee
in monitoring the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an-ongoing basis. Deficiencies
in the design and implementation of internal controls
are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

The Group Managing Director and the Group Finance
Director have the responsibility of developing and
implementing risk mitigation strategies including taking
out insurance policies to cover the financial impact of
risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible for
arranging appropriate insurance coverage including
Directors Liability Insurance to protect directors of the
Group against potential legal liabilities.

Risk management report is submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board at least once a year and
internal control report is submitted half-yearly. The Board
performs annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope
with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems;
result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency
of communication with the Board in relation to result of
risk and internal control review; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and
status of compliance with the Listing Rules.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with the requirements of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the
Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless
the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the
public. The Group is committed to ensure that information
contained in its announcements is true and accurate, and
not false or misleading.

Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board has overall responsibility for monitoring the
operations of the Group’s business. Executive Directors
are appointed to the boards of directors of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of their operations,
including attendance at board meetings, review and
approval of business strategies, budgets and plans,
and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business
division is accountable for the conduct and performance
of such division.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system
for reporting information to the executive management
teams of each core business division and the Executive
Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by
the management of individual business division subject to
the review and approval of the Executive Directors. When
setting budgets, the management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.
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The Executive Directors review monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operating statistics
of each business division and hold regular meetings with
the executive management team and senior management
of business operations to discuss these reports, business
performance against budgets, forecasts, significant risk
sensitivities and strategies. In addition, the Group Finance
Director and members of his finance team review monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and address
accounting and finance related matters.

The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget
control and are controlled within each business with
approval level for such expenditures being set by
reference to the level of responsibility of each executive
officer. Capital expenditures are subject to overall control
within the annual budget review and approval process,
and more specific control and approval by the Group
Finance Director or Executive Directors are required prior
to commitment for unbudgeted expenditures and material
expenditures within the approved budget. Reports of
actual versus budgeted and approved expenditures are
also regularly reviewed.

The internal audit department provides to the Group
Managing Director on a regular basis, and to the Audit
Committee if necessary, independent assurance as
to the existence and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management activities and controls in its business
operations. Using risk assessment methodology and
taking into account the dynamics of the Group activities,
the internal audit department devises its yearly audit
plan, which is reviewed by the Audit Committee, and
reassessed during the year as needed to ensure that
adequate resources are deployed and the plan’s
objectives are met. The internal audit department is also
responsible for assessing the Group’s internal control
system, formulating an impartial opinion on the system,
and reporting its findings to the Group Managing Director,
Group Finance Director and the Audit Committee as well
as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues
have been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular
dialogue is maintained with the Group’s external auditors
so that both are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scopes of work.
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Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of the work performed
by the internal audit function includes financial and
operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls
and relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are
presented to the Group Finance Director and the relevant
management teams. These reports are reviewed and the
appropriate actions taken.

Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that an effective governance structure is in place to
continuously review and improve corporate governance
practices within the Group to keep abreast of evolving
environment and regulatory requirements.

The Board has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code, and the
Audit Committee has been delegated the responsibilities
to perform the corporate governance duties set out
therein. To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling its
responsibilities, the Company Secretary, together with
representatives from key departments of the Company,
continuously examines the corporate governance structure
of the Group, provides updates, identifies emerging
matters for compliance, sets up appropriate compliance
mechanisms and monitors compliance on an ongoing
basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during
the year except deviations explained in various relevant
paragraphs above.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 March 2024 covering all material financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, and is satisfied that such systems are effective
and adequate. In the view of the Board, the systems of
risk management and internal control of the Group are
sufficient to safeguard the interests of the Group.

Diversity in the Workforce

As of 31 March 2024, our total workforce comprised of
62% female and 38% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 44% female and 56% male. Please refer to
the section headed “Employment” in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for information on the
diversity in the Group’s workforce in general for the year
ended 31 March 2024. The Board considers that the
Group has achieved good gender diversity in its workforce
(including senior management).

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board
and the Group’s senior management maintain close
communications with investors, analysts, fund managers
and the media by various channels including interviews
and meetings. The Group specifically assigns Mr. Lam
Hing Lun, Alain, Group Finance Director, as the contact
person for investor relationship to respond to requests for
information and queries of investors.
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Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board through its
website at www.orientalwatch.com or in writing sent to
the principal office of the Company at 19th Floor, Wing
On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Directors, Company Secretary or other appropriate
members of senior management respond to enquiries from
shareholders promptly.

The Company had reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy
during the year ended 31 March 2024 and concluded that
the shareholders’ communication policy has been properly
in place during the Year and is effective.

Shareholders’ Right

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information of the Group required under the Listing
Rules, the SFO and other applicable laws and
regulations to the shareholders through publication of
notices,announcements, circulars, interim and annual
reports. In addition to dispatching circulars, notices,
financial reports to shareholders, additional information
of the Group’s also available to the shareholders on the
Company’s website.

The Board welcomes the view of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group. Shareholders are encouraged to
attend all general meetings of the Company at which the
Chairman and Directors are available to answer questions
on the Group’s business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERBE

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company had
not changed its Bye-laws.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIR -8 RERKRSE

In accordance with Appendix C2 — Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main Board
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We”,
and “Our”) presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“‘ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
March 2024 (the “Reporting Period”, or “FY2024”). The
Report aims to meet the needs of different stakeholders
for information that facilitates a better understanding of
the Group’s ESG progress and development direction.

REPORTING SCOPE

We are principally engaged in the trading business
of luxury watches. This Report presents, aligned with
the annual report, our ESG policies, programmes and
performance in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
during the Reporting Period. The reporting boundaries
were selected based on principal operating locations of
the Company.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Company strictly follows the four Reporting Principles
during the preparation of the ESG Report.

Materiality: Our Company conducted the annual
stakeholder engagement and identified
the material ESG issues during the
Reporting Period. The final ESG issues
have been confirmed by the management
and the Board of Directors of the
Company. All the material ESG issues are
addressed in this Report.

Quantitative: Our Company monitored various Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI”) during the
Reporting Period, which are presented in
this Report, to keep track of the progress
of our ESG initiatives. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and
management system can be evaluated
and validated. For all standards and
methods adopted for calculating the KPI
(if applicable), please refer to the relevant
sections in the Report.
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Balance: The Report presents an unbiased picture
of the Company’s ESG performance
during the Reporting Period.
Consistency: The Company adopted consistent
methodologies in the data calculation
as compared to prior years to show
comparable ESG data over time. The
data are useful for setting environmental
targets, which will be discussed in this
Report.

BOARD STATEMENT

Acting as top management and supervision role of
the Company, our Board of Directors (the “Board”)
acknowledges that they have overall responsibility
to oversee the ESG issues to achieve sustainable
development, which includes:

e Taking ESG into account for establishing policies and
setting strategies;

° Brainstorming the current and potential planning
about ESG; and

o Receiving updated information for decision-making
and forward-looking through regular report from ESG
taskforce.

We make use of the materiality assessment which is
conducted with our stakeholders and industrial practices
to explore the potentials and opportunities of our focus
ESG topics. With the service-oriented characteristics,
the Company’s social aspects are our identified focus
area in ESG. Meanwhile, we continue to drive our effort
in improving the environment by reducing consumption.
We have setup five years emissions reduction target on
greenhouse gases, energy intensity, waste and enhance
water efficiency with long-tern management goals. The
Group will continue to monitor various environmental data
and make continuous progress. Going forward, the Board
will strengthen the communication with the ESG taskforce
to continuously introduce ESG policies and strategies
as well as track ESG performance through a top-down
approach.
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OUR ESG GOVERNANCE

We believe a well-developed corporate governance
is the key to success of setting our ESG strategy and
building a communication channel between the Board
and management and operational level. Therefore, we
have established an ESG taskforce, which includes senior
management as well as department heads of different
functions while the Board has the overall responsibility
for the Company’s ESG reporting and strategy in order to
embed ESG-related elements throughout our operations.
The key responsibilities of the ESG taskforce include the
following:

e  Establishing the long-term ESG goals and missions of
the Company;

o Monitoring and managing ESG-related risks;

o Evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s ESG
management systems; and

° Reporting the ESG objectives achieved to the Board
on a regular basis.

The ESG taskforce is authorised by the Board to carry
out its tasks including stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment. External professional advices
could be sought at the expense of the Company when the
ESG risks are assessed to be material.

We are committed to complying with the latest laws
and regulations as well as the industry standards in
our ESG practice. Our ESG initiatives are revised and
communicated timely with staff members in order to
enhance the efficiency of the ESG tasks.

We review our risk management process on a regular
basis. Material risks will be assessed and discussed
by the abovementioned ESG taskforce and the Board.
We develop and execute our business strategies with
considerations of risks that may affect its business,
such as operation risks, climate risks, financial risks
and compliance risks. Internal control measures will be
designed and implemented to mitigate the ESG risks.
Please refer to the “RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL” section of the Company’s “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” for details of the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand that stakeholders’ comments are crucial
to our decision-making process as well as our long-
term success in the future. Understanding stakeholder
expectations and addressing their concerns is crucial for
aligning with ESG trends and making informed decisions.

Therefore, we engage our stakeholders by active EHLBEHE - HMDTHEMATAERABESE
communication and interaction. We have adopted the &L :

following engagement methods for our stakeholders:

# Stakeholders

Engagement Methods

F 25 ME BA & SHGE
1 Suppliers and Business Partners ° Meetings

YAESE T e

2 Customers

BF

w

Employees

=

4 |nvestors and Shareholders
HEERKR

5 Government and Supervising Authorities
U K 85 B 1 R

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

=l

Daily email communications
§HEH B
Regular evaluations

EHIRHE

Company website

NGIEERA

Communication in retailing points
TEHR

Customer service hotline

B P RIS 2R

Enquiry emails

EHEH

Internal trainings

PR3

Staff notices and announcements
BIdERAE

Annual performance appraisal
FERBANZ

Internal meetings

B &%

General meetings

&N

Annual and interim reports
FEETHERE

Circulars and announcements
B RAE

Company website

YNGIE N

Email communications
EE A
Meetings

&z
=i

Government websites regarding regulations
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# Stakeholders Engagement Methods
FasrEEE BHE %
6 Social Groups and Public e  Charitable activities
HEHBEAR BEEH
o Public consultation emails
ARFAED
7 Media o Press releases
ot FEEM
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMFTM

We have invited internal and external stakeholders to  HMEBEBRIRINBANZABBEELETZ
conduct materiality assessment FY2022. Considering that T FHZWFHE - ZRI -
there was no major change in the business and operating HMFHNEBFLKLRBIBENEE - —
environment during FY2024 and the results of the T _HFEZMWFHERDERITHE=E
materiality assessment in FY2022 can still respond to the  MHEEWHE - EF2®R — T
expectations of stakeholders, the Board confirmed that FEEMFTHERNERRZmME - ME
the results of the materiality assessment in FY2022 are still @ HE ' BEAUBRE ST __PFHR
applicable to the Reporting Period. If needed, readers can 3% * #t @ REAWE - THREZMTMHH
refer to the FY2022 ESG Report for the methodology and  &Hl /A KIRAR ©

process of materiality assessment.

28

29 e
30

22 23 1

16 15
25 RElE21, .12 o

® o5 o7 ¢ ,*19 18
73 o 3% °

.4
24

(00)
©
* VO O

Importance to the Stakeholders of the Group
HAKENSEREE 2EE N
o1

Materiality to the Business of the Group
HAEBEK B2
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# ESG Issues
ESG =&

General

—REE

1 Compliance
AR

Environmental
RBiE

2  Air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions
RESHEUOR = RS HER

3 Non-hazardous waste
mERZEY

4 Energy consumption
e

5  Water consumption
KE R B FE
6  Use of packaging materials

EReEmE

7 Environmental targets
RIEAR

8  Noise pollution
EY:3EES

9  Environmental impacts from investments (external lighting and renovation works)
REHRENTZE (PINEIRERETR)

10 Climate resilience
RIRTEE

Social

HE

11 Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

BEE - BT KRR

12 Employee compensation and benefits

1 8 3 B Ko t& A

13 Employee working hours and rest periods

BB TIFR B RS

14 Equal opportunity
FEHE

15 Workplace health and safety
THESHMERER S
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# ESG Issues
ESG &&
16 Employee training and development

e Bl R R

17 Anti-child and anti-forced labour
BF IEE T K BF ko8 H %5 T

18 Supply chain relationship management

HEEBERER

19 Environmental and labour performance of suppliers and subcontractors
HEBLSBENRERS TRR

20 Green/sustainable procurement

e ARERE

21 Product safety
EmZ®

22 Product quality and assurance

EmE 2 RIRF

23 Service quality
RBEEE

24 Intellectual property rights
MBERE

25 Advertising and labelling
ER=SEEE

26 Data privacy and protection
BRI KR &

27 Community investment
HEIRE

Governance

=P

28 Board’s oversight of ESG issues
EECYHESGREMNET

29 Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
&5 KB IR

30 Anti-corruption training
R&EFEI
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In this Report, ESG Issue of Environmental target (#7) is
incorporated in the sections of Energy consumption, Non-
hazardous waste, Water consumption and Greenhouse
gas emissions below. ESG Issue of Noise pollution (#8) is
also described inside the Renovation works part below.
The section of Environmental and social risks along the
supply chain covers both Environmental and labour
performance of suppliers and subcontractors (#19) and
Green/sustainable procurement (#20). We have also
combined ESG Issues of Product safety (#21), Product
quality and assurance (#22) and Service quality (#23) into
one part named Product responsibility and service quality
below. The ESG Issue of Board’s oversight of ESG issues
(#28) is addressed in the Board statement.

Lastly, the relevant regulations and rules have been
mentioned in the corresponding sections to address the
compliance concerns from the stakeholders.

Based on the above analysis, this Report will cover the
following major ESG related issues and describe them in
order according to the importance of the ESG issues to
our stakeholders.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X{T& B AR 2 A
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Social, Employment and Labour Practices #HEe EERZEIER
ESG aspects as ESG aspects as
set out in ESG set out in ESG Material ESG issues for
Guide Material ESG issues for Guide the Company
ESGIE2|h 8, the Company ESG 5| M &
ZESGEE KARZEKRESGEE ZESGEE KARZEKRESGHE
B7 Anti-corruption o Anti-corruption B1 Employment o Employee
KRBT and anti-money ER compensation and
laundering benefits
REFRMIDERE EEHMRET
o Anti-corruption o Recruitment,
training promotion and
&35 dismissal

RE BN RERE

o Equal opportunity
TERE

o Employee working
hours and rest
periods

EETHBARERS

B6 Product Responsibility ¢ Product B3 Development and o Employee training
mEF responsibility and Training and development
service quality ZRERE EEEIIREE
EnEARRKER

o Data privacy and
protection

ERLERIxE

o Advertising and
labelling
BEREE

o Intellectual property
rights
HBER

B2 Health and Safety Workplace health B8 Community Investment ¢ Social responsibility
BEELE and safety HERE HeRE
THESHREEZS
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ESG aspects as ESG aspects as
set out in ESG set out in ESG Material ESG issues for
Guide Material ESG issues for Guide the Company
ESGIS2| M H the Company ESG I HfTE
ZESGEME KARZEKRESGEE ZESGEME KRARAZERESGHE
B5 Supply Chain o Supply chain B4 Labour Standards o Anti-child and anti-
Management relationship LTIZE forced labour
HERERE management Bt ZE T REy 1% 5
HEEREER 4T

o Environmental and
social risks along the
supply chain
HERNRERILE
Bk

A2 Use of Resources o Energy consumption A3 Environmental Impacts ¢  External lighting
V-9 2idiid e from Investments BAMEt
REH RGN E
¢ Non-hazardous o Renovation works
waste REIR

EEBED

o Use of packaging
materials

ERBENH

o Water consumption

KERIAR
Al Emissions o Air emissions A4 Climate Change o Climate resilience
Any RAEHM REE AENEER
o Greenhouse gas

emissions
BERBIN
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SOCIAL, EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

We believe that honesty, integrity, and fairness are of vital
importance to our business operations. The Company
has incorporated a strict code of conduct in its staff
manual for all employees to specify that solicitation and
acceptance of advantages are prohibited and breaches of
the code of conduct would result in disciplinary actions.
Regular declaration of interest is compulsory for certain
staff depending on grades and positions. Reminders are
sent to employees regularly, and our business partners,
suppliers and contractors are also informed of our policy
on declaration of interests. The Company also periodically
reviews the effectiveness of its internal control systems.

In addition, we have established an internal whistleblowing
reporting mechanism to collect suspicious misconduct
cases through various channels, and whistleblowers are
protected. Designated parties are assigned to conduct
fair, detailed, and independent investigations. For true
misconduct cases, the responsible department or person
will be imposed with punishment according to internal
systems and cases will even be settled through legal
means.

We adhere to the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the bribery, corruption, and money laundering,
for example, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance in Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression
of Bribery in the Private Sector in Macau, and Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the PRC, Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery and Criminal Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid laws and regulations. In addition, there was no
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Company or its employees during the Reporting
Period.
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Anti-corruption training

Anti-corruption training is one of the preventive measures
and can raise directors’ and employees’ awareness of
integrity. Directors regularly receive reading materials
about anti-corruption via internal and external channels,
reminding them to uphold high ethics in their position
in FY2024. The Company also encourages them to join
relevant webinars to keep updated of the anti-corruption
related messages. Employees have been given induction
briefing organised by the Company or seminars on anti-
corruption regularly organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in Reporting
Period.

Product Responsibility
Product responsibility and service quality

As one of the largest watch retailers in Hong Kong
renowned for its reputation, credibility, and scale, we
have zero-tolerance for selling counterfeit consumer
goods in our retail shops. The Company has joined
the “Hong Kong Q-Mark Scheme” of the Hong Kong
Q-Mark Council to attest the quality of its products and
services. We also comply with the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in Mainland
China. To achieve high product and service quality, the
Company only imports watches from manufacturers who
use environmentally friendly and safe raw materials for
production. This ensures the products we sell to our
customers are safe.
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Although we heavily rely on our suppliers to import
quality products, we also need to ensure that products
are authenticated and obtained with valid certification. A
rigorous quality assurance process and sample testing are
conducted before sending the products to branches for
retail. For effectively handling the potential product recall
cases, we have systematic internal recall procedures
in place to effectively handle potential recall cases. A
detail investigation about the quality and recall cases is
conducted and preventive measures are implemented
to avoid cases from happening in the future. During
the Reporting Period, the Company is not aware of any
product recall due to safety and health reasons.

With the business philosophy of “keep the faith, caring for
customer”, we commit to providing outstanding services
that meet the market’s needs and valuing our customers.
During the Reporting Period, the Company is not aware of
any serious products and service-related complaints due
to safety and health reasons.

The Company’s retail shops are all located at prime
locations to allow customers to enjoy convenient and
comfortable shopping experience. The Company has
established a specially designed VIP lounge at the
flagship stores to provide a private, nice and leisure
environment for customers to exchange professional
knowledge and insights of timepieces with our staff. Our
professional sales team strictly abide by standardised
service guidelines when serving customers and they
also need to receive regular assessments to maintain
market competitiveness. Our professional sales team are
well-trained and strive to provide comprehensive and
knowledgeable advice accompanied with sincere and
premium services to each customer.

We value our customer feedback which helps achieve
continuous service improvement. Customers can raise
their concerns and complaints through various channels
such as designated customer service hotline, email
address and social media platforms. The concerns and
complaints are required to settle within a limited time and
revert satisfactory solutions to customers. Client review
is arranged to understand whether or not customers are
satisfied with the handling measures. Reports of enquiries
and complaints are recorded and reviewed regularly by
the management team for improvements on products and
services.
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During the Reporting period, the Company received 6
and 5 complaints in Hong Kong and Mainland China
respectively, regarding product quality, customer
communication as well as unsatisfactory follow-up and
service attitude. All these eleven complaints had been
resolved in accordance with the above procedures. In
response to these complaints, the HR department had
recognised the need for improvement and enhanced
training programs for employees. The aim is to address
the identified issues, improve product quality, enhance
customer communication skills, and promote a more
satisfactory follow-up and service attitude in order to
prevent similar complaints in the future.

In addition to understanding the needs of our customers,
we attach great importance to maintaining a good
relationship with them and rewarding their support to
us. We implement different tiers of membership, offering
different privileges.

Data privacy and protection

The Company respects the data privacy of our prestigious
customers, business partners and staff. It strives to
protect the privacy in the collection, processing, and
use of personal data. The Company strictly follows the
data protection regulations in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Furthermore, the Company has deployed
appropriate technical measures in place, such as firewall
and anti-virus software, to protect personal data against
unauthorised use or access. The Company guarantees
that the personal data is securely kept and processed
only for the purpose for which it has been collected.

We devote our efforts in compliance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Sale of Goods Ordinance,
Trade Description Ordinance, Supply of Services (Implied
Terms) Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial Code
and Personal Data Protection Act in Macau, and China
Personal Information Protection Law in Mainland China.

During the Reporting Period, we have not identified any

material non-compliance with the abovementioned laws
and regulations.
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Advertising and labelling

We execute our marketing strategy with the principle of
integrity as it is our responsibility to treat our customers
fairly and truthfully. We ensure that our operations comply
with the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, the
Commercial Code in Macau and the Advertisement Laws
in Mainland China.

The Company uses marketing materials provided by the
suppliers to ensure consistency between actual product
specification and information on the marketing materials.
Therefore, our marketing, advertising, and sales related
materials and services must always be genuine and
precise with the aim to meet the customer needs. We
never misrepresent any untruthful statements that would
as a result mislead our customers. Our advertisements
are all factually correct to the real product. Our products
are only offered to meet the customers’ needs and we are
prohibited to sell unsuitable product.

During the Reporting Period, we have not identified any
material non-compliance with the abovementioned laws
and regulations.

Intellectual property rights

The Company formally registers and keeps validity of
trademarks to protect and prevent from infringing the
intellectual property rights. We strictly comply with the
Trade Marks Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Industrial
Property Code in Macau and the Trademark Law of the
PRC in Mainland China in our operations. During the
Reporting Period, we have not identified any material
non-compliance with the abovementioned laws and
regulations.
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Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy,
pleasant and efficient work environment for its staff. In
order to ensure the work environment is healthy and
safe, various administrative measures such as workplace
safety posters, training courses and practical guidelines
have been implemented to communicate such a concept
to all staff in its extensive retail network. Regardless of
seriousness and locations, all cases of injury are required
to be reported to the head office for further assessment
under the internal policies and procedures so as to ensure
proper handling of the cases and execution of preventive
measures. We have not identified any number of lost days
by the Company’s employees due to work-related injuries
and any case of work-related fatalities across three
financial years, including FY2024, which result in zero
rates of work-related fatalities.

As a responsible employer, all staff are entitled to the
Company’s medical insurance and other competitive
fringe benefits to enable them to have easier access
to preventive and emergency health care services and
affordable treatment.

We realise the laws and regulations about workplace
health and safety have been tightened and more aware by
the local authorities. We have spent efforts in compliance
with the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong
Kong, safety laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/83/M), and
Work Safety Law of the PRC in Mainland China. During
the Reporting Period, we have not identified any material
non-compliance with the aforesaid workplace health and
safety-related laws and regulations.
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Supply Chain Management
Supply chain relationship management

Since its establishment in 1961, we have established and
maintained strong relationships with various well-known
luxury European watch brands. Many of these brands
are accredited for their supreme quality and excellent
craftsmanship. Furthermore, their products are required to
comply with high production standards and pass through
various testing procedures to ensure quality. Apart from
product quality, we also consider the reputation, as well
as the environmental and social performance of the watch
manufacturers before establishing business relationship
with them. Our Company purchases well-known luxury
watches from their brand regional offices. The following
table shows the total number of suppliers in FY2024
across different regions:

Unit Hong Kong
B i

Supply chain management
HEsE IR

No. of suppliers FY2024 Supplier 100
—E TR EREE e
No. of suppliers FY2023 Supplier 101
—E_=HFHEREE HIER

Environmental and social risks along the supply chain

We build a fair, anti-competitive environment for managing
our supply chain. We ensure that our suppliers comply
with the anti-competitive related laws and regulations.

HrEgEE
REEHEEE

ARRB A —NNR—FRILIAK  —HE—
FHBREBRMNERBEELRERRE
AR ZEmETNVEESERELR T
BISHZRD - WIN WEZEMATA
SEERENBBTRBS - AR
B REmmMENAIN  HERREHEY
EEER > RAMEBEZENMRER
HEHTEZRE - ARBIARE 2 mhEE
B ERRBAANAEERK - TRER
— T PY B A R ) T AR

Mainland
China
R E A ith

60 15 175

60 12 173

HEENRE SRR

BPRIERF  REFARBUAEER
fPIEY L FE 58 - I MEOR A B 7 8 T I B A
BRIRREM

Annual Report 2024 — & — [0 4F F #f

53



54

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERRE

We are also aware of the importance of selecting suppliers
that are environmentally and socially responsible. For
effectively identifying and managing the environmental
and social risks, we require our material suppliers to fill
in declaration regarding their operations in environmental
and social aspects. We endeavour to ensure that our
suppliers do not violate any relevant environmental
and social related laws and regulations, which include
key areas on emissions, health and safety, and labour
standards. We maintain ongoing communications with
our suppliers to understand if their operations align with
the filled declaration. Once any misalignment has been
discovered, we require suppliers to improve the conditions
until the Company satisfies with the arrangement. If the
supplier does not further improve, we would consider
terminating the cooperation. Furthermore, the declaration
result is one of the factors affecting the selection and
evaluation of suppliers. Moving forward, the Group will
consider further strengthening the management of risks
in the supply chain to minimise the negative impact of
procurement on environmental and social aspects.

We actively procure green products for our operations,
all packaging bags distributed to customers are made
of Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) accredited paper
which are more environmentally friendly. We also devote
to exploring the potentials and prioritising the purchase of
more green products and services.

Employment

Considering human resources as the most important
asset of the Company, the Company has established
employment policies and guidelines based on the local
employment laws in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China and endeavour to build an employee-oriented
working environment to attract and retain talents.
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Employee compensation and benefits

The Company takes reference from local industrial
average to determine staff remuneration and other fringe
benefits. Experience and qualifications of staff are also
taken into account. Key performance indices, depending
on staff position, have been adopted to measure staff
performance in determining staff salary packages. Apart
from basic salary, the Company also provides eligible
employees with commissions and/or discretionary bonus
to increase their work incentive and boost the sale
performance. Clear guidelines pertaining to recruitment,
promotion, compensation, dismissal, working hours, paid
leaves, rest periods, and employee welfare have been
established in the Group’s Employee Handbook and
individual employment contracts. We foster a healthy
work-life balance and provide various benefits to our
employees, such as paid annual, sick, bereavement/
compassionate, marriage, and maternity leaves.

Employees are entitled to birthday leave, marriage leave,
and bereavement leave, which provide them with the
necessary time off to celebrate personal milestones and
cope with difficult times. Additionally, we prioritize the
needs of our female colleagues by implementing a special
policy allowing them to adjust their work schedule by
either starting work one hour later or leaving work one
hour earlier for one month after returning from maternity
leave. We also value the importance of rest and relaxation,
offering annual leave benefits that increase with seniority,
enabling employees to recharge and spend quality time
with their loved ones. Furthermore, our commitment to
supporting employees extends to their families, as we
provide a children’s education aid award scheme to
assist with educational expenses. We prioritize the health
and well-being of our employees by offering an annual
physical examination allowance to encourage preventive
care. Lastly, we understand the importance of continuous
learning and growth, which is why we provide a training
allowance to support employees in enhancing their skills
and knowledge.

Eligible employees of Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China are entitled to mandatory provident fund schemes,
the social security fund, and the five types of insurance
and contributions to the mandatory housing fund
respectively. Medical insurance is also provided to
employees to protect their health and safety during work
time.
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Recruitment, promotion and dismissal B - BARFE

The Company hires and promotes staff who share and AR FEREHKBRRALZFARALEFE
support the Company’s missions, values and work ethics. #n* BEIBXEREZET - AQAIER
The Company treasures those who demonstrate diligence, REAHE 8 [ELHABRZEH B
initiative, responsibility and integrity. Hiring and promotion ~ L ° AR AINKE - MERFEHK 2 RA
are based on performance, merit and the principle of ~ RERREHIZTE -

equal opportunities.

Total workforce in FY2024 and FY2023: TETMER_E_=ZHMFLEIR
g

Indicator FY2024 FY2023

HE —ECEgE —EC-=F

Total workforce

BI@E

Full-time employee Employee 596 579
2RIESR (==

Part-time employee Employee 0 1
RBES ==

Total workforce by gender
RItRE Dz B TR

Male Employee 224 213
St ==1
Female Employee 372 367
pegid ==

Total workforce by age group
REWRERB D 2 BETRK

Below 30 Employee 66 42
30ARLA T {==]
30-50 Employee 458 455
30 £ 50 5% (==
Over 50 Employee 72 83
50 5k LA k= ==1
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Indicator FY2024 FY2023

B —ECmgE —E-=§FE

Total workforce by employee category
RESEMNEID 2 ETHEH

General level Employee 483 473
— Mg R ==
Middle management level Employee 86 78
hREEE (=]
Senior management level Employee 27 29
=REREE (==

Total workforce by geographical location
BB EE D 2 B TR

Hong Kong Employee 207 203
i (==
Macau Employee 20 19
P {==]
Mainland China Employee 369 358
aleilak:i (=]

Dismissal is considered for underperformance, misconduct B I RBEXE - 1TRAKXE K FILK
and/or fraud. All dismissal cases will be carried out in  &F * AR AIEE R HAEE - A MEREE
accordance with the relevant labour laws and regulations ~ R&#EEE - JRPI R P E A2 HHEIS T
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Employees  JERENOEFEDIETT - BE IR AEREB
can also choose to terminate their employment voluntarily, — FE&XILEEBER - WAERERBEAHA
and they are required to complete the handover within the — BB - R EEE E R W HERIA AT
required notice period. To collect views from employees  HIRINE 25 AN &) A% B EEER A BT
and identify improvement areas of the Company, exit  BEBE °

interview with the leavers will be conducted.
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Employee turnover rate' in FY2024 and FY2023: TN ERZZE=MF L RERERK
=1

i

Indicator i FY2024 FY2023

ey B i —E-NEF —EB=HMF

Total employee resigned/terminated

BT, BEE (R B 428K

Total Employee 92 96
et =3=|

Turnover rate % 15.44 16.55
R &

Employee resigned/terminated by gender

WL RIB S 2 BHE,BER(E B

Male Employee 28 39
B =

Turnover rate % 12.50 18.31
R &

Female Employee 64 57
% EE

Turnover rate % 17.20 15.53
R &

Employee resigned/terminated by age group

mERERIE D ZBHEBERIES

Below 30 Employee 17 16
305 MA T ==

Turnover rate % 25.76 38.10
MR

30-50 Employee 58 65
30 & 507% ==1

Turnover rate % 12.66 14.29
R &

Over 50 Employee 17 15
5058 A & EE

Turnover rate % 23.61 18.07
R &

' Employee turnover rate (percentage) = Number of employee ' RERAX(A D)= ZIEHE S BB A

departure of the category/Number of employees of the %ﬁ(/ii&iﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’lﬁé)\@ x 100%

category at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%
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Indicator FY2024 FY2023
BEE “E-NBF “EIC=BHF
Employee resigned/terminated by geographical location

BRI B E D 2 BHE BEBES

Hong Kong Employee 24 22
BB ==

Turnover rate % 11.59 10.84
R &

Macau Employee 0 1
R (==

Turnover rate % 0 5.26
R =R

Mainland China Employee 68 73
A i E&

Turnover rate % 18.43 20.39
IIEES

Equal opportunity

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. The
Company emphasises human capital diversity, and is
against any kind of discrimination. The Company ensures
equal opportunity in all of its human resources processes,
regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability,
family status, and race of the staff.

Employee working hours and rest periods

Working hours, rest periods and other benefits and welfare
are determined based on local industrial averages.
Experience, qualifications, and seniority of staff are taken
into account as well.

We have put great emphasis to the compliance with
the labour-related laws and regulations such as the
Employment Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance in
Hong Kong, Labour Relations Law, and Framework Law on
Employment Policy and Worker’s Rights in Macau as well
as Labour Law of the PRC and Labour Contract Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid employment laws and regulations.

FE#E
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Development and Training
Employee training and development

The Company considers human resources as vitally
important to the success of its business. Therefore,
the Company has developed a comprehensive training
programme consisting of product knowledge, service
and selling skills, complaints handling techniques and
managerial competences. These training courses are
provided for different levels of staff based on their job
responsibilities.

The Company also offers induction training courses for
communicating corporate values, service standards and
code of conduct to new joiners. In addition, leadership
programmes organised by external professional
institutions have been provided to management personnel
so as to equip them with proper professional management
skills. Furthermore, the Company has engaged external
service providers to perform independent evaluation on
the performance of frontline staff. It helps identify potential
improvement areas to enhance customer service skills of
the staff.

The percentage of employees trained? in FY2024 and
FY2023:

BRREI
ESZHIR X R

ARBBR/ANEREEBEKINMN = X
BE - Hit AAFEHF2mEFE
g MEEMAR - RELHERE &
REIERIT R EEA B - ZFEIIRER
BERTRBARE TRE -

R R IR AFT ABE B 1R ABUE IR
B ERETHREXRER REFERT
ASFA e ESN  RATMERIEEABR
HERINEFERXRIBEN 2 BT E > FER
ZERABEEXREEREE - 1IN A7
ERBINE R H BT ZAARE T
ZRE - BHEBRAIEREZR S8
T2 EPREKIT

TECMER_E-_=UEFEZIEE Z
Ankhe:

Indicator FY2024 FY2023
4= —E-UEBE —EB=HMF
Number of employees trained by gender

RIERIE D 2 XllE B AH

Male Employee 186 158
5 ==1

Employees training rate % 40.26 35.91
BEEIIE

Female Employee 276 282
gegicd {==]

Employees training rate % 59.74 64.09
BB FIx

2 Employee training rate (percentage) = Number of trained
workforce of the category/Number of workforce took part in
training at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%
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Indicator FY2024 FY2023

BE —ECMgE —EB-=§E

Number of employees trained by employee category

REEBENE N 2 BREER

General level Employee 334 316
— AR =]

Employees training rate % 72.30 71.82
EEEIIxR

Middle management level Employee 109 102
hARETE E {==]

Employees training rate % 23.59 23.18
2 B 1 %

Senior management level Employee 19 22
SRERRE (==]

Employees training rate % 4.11 5.00
1 B 353 5%

Number of employees trained by geographical location
RIRA 8D 2 B B BH

Hong Kong Employee 163 145
BB ==

Employees training rate % 35.28 32.95
EEEIIE

Macau Employee 20 20
P (==

Employees training rate % 4.33 4.55
EEEII=E

Mainland China Employee 279 275
A A ==

Employees training rate % 60.39 62.50
BB FIx
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The average training hours completed per employee® in —ZE_MNMFER T _=MFBEREET
FY2024 and FY2023: X2 IR e

Indicator FY2024 FY2023

=E: —E-MmAF —ERC=HMEF

Total and average training hours by gender
R BI85 2 5P AR B T 1T R B

Male Hour 3,037.00 2,078.00
Bt /N
Average training hours Hour 13.56 9.76
1555 I A 21 2N
Female Hour 6,418.00 4,859.40
g3 N
Average training hours Hour 17.25 13.24
555 IR 2R /N

Total and average training hours by employee category
1Z1E BRI Bl 5 2 359I 485 B K ST 15 R 8

General level Hour 6,537.50 4,943.90
— R R aN:si
Average training hours Hour 13.54 10.45
F 95T A 2K N
Middle management level Hour 2,740.00 1,759.50
AR E R B
Average training hours Hour 31.86 22.56
TR 2 N
Senior management level Hour 177.5 234.00
SRERE AN
Average training hours Hour 6.57 8.07
15 55 5 B 2R /N

Total training hours by geographical location
RBUEE D 2 EE A

Hong Kong Hour 1,393.00 1292.00
A /N
Macau Hour 187.00 149.00
JEFY N
Mainland China Hour 7,875.00 5,496.40
R A N

3 Average training hours = Total number of training hours for 3 B = ZHEFEES Z BB RE
employees of the category/Number of employees of the S E2RARZEREB A
category at the end of the Reporting Period
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Community Investment
Social responsibility

The Company demonstrates its care for society by giving
back to the community. We are committed to enhancing
the community’s well-being and social services. During
the reporting period, the Company as a whole, as well
as individual senior management personnel have been
actively donating to various charitable organisations,
for example Hong Kong Children in Need Foundation
and Principal Chan Free Tutorial World, with a lump sum
of HK$370,197 equivalent. On one hand, it provides
funding to support charity activities. On the other hand,
it motivates the staff to join the charity activities, thereby
magnifying the effect. We also have built a volunteering
team that actively participates in community events,
contributing to total of 12.5 service hours.

In July 2023, the Company and the HKCIN Charity
Foundation organised a Children’s Life Planning Workshop
at Shek Lei Catholic Primary School for underprivileged
F4 to F5 students. The workshop aimed to provide career
guidance and help students develop life plans. Through
volunteer-guided training, LEGO Serious Play activities,
and a game called “Child’s Play: Game of Life”, students
were encouraged to explore their talents, reflect on
their choices, and understand the uniqueness of each
individual. The workshop also included a Writing Level-
Up Strategy, where students used self-reflection and
personality analysis to set personal goals and create
action plans. The overall goal was to empower the
students, remove limitations, and guide them towards a
hopeful and fulfilling future.
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Labour Standards
Anti-child and anti-forced labour

All of the Company’s offices and retail stores strictly
comply with the local law’s requirements, with no tolerance
on child labour. During our hiring process, we check and
verify the personal data of the potential candidates in
order to prevent from hiring child labour. We also sign
the formal employment contract with employees, and the
contract specifies key areas such as work duties, work
hours, overtime arrangements and rest periods to protect
the rights and obligations of the employer and employees
and prevent forced labour.

We have noted the requirements about child or forced
labour in the local laws and regulations of our operating
locations. Therefore, we strictly adhere to these laws
and regulations such as Employment Ordinance in Hong
Kong, Labour Relations Law in Macau and Labour Law of
the PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period,
we have not identified any material non-compliance with
the aforesaid employment laws and regulations. In case
of discovering non-compliance cases, we will immediately
terminate the employment relationship or even transfer the
cases and settle through legal means.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company exerts its best efforts in protecting the
environment from its business activities and workplace.
The Company is committed to promoting the green
concept by introducing environmentally friendly business
practices and educating its employees to raise their
awareness on environmental protection.

Multiple measures have been adopted to reduce energy
and other resource use, minimise waste, increase
recycling and promote environmentally friendly practices
in its supply chain and retail network operations.
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During our daily operations, we are subject to the Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance and Motor Vehicle Idling
(Fixed Penalty) Ordinance in Hong Kong, environmental
laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/91/M), and Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise, Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, Laws of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes and Energy Conservation
Law of the PRC in Mainland China. We strictly adhere to
all applicable environmental laws and regulations, and
we have not identified any material non-compliance with
the aforesaid laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.

We make use of the past consumption data for
environmental target setting regarding the energy, water
and waste. Employees will continue to be reminded to
minimise unnecessary consumption of resources and shall
continue to implement green efforts in reducing resource
consumption from its source. Relevant emission figures
will be monitored periodically to ensure the Group is on
track to achieve the reduction target.

Use of Resources

Owing to the nature of our retail business, our operations
do not have issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose
was noted during the Reporting Period. Fuels, electricity
and packaging bags are the major resources we use in
our luxury watch retail business.

Energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the types and amount of
energy consumed were as follows:

_ Fyao4
“ECmEtE

Unit Amount

Energy Type RRER By EfE
Electricity g kWh

TR/ 1,850,863

Diesel Loih Liter 27t 41,096

Petrol mﬂi Liter A7t 23,516
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FY2023

I Sy o
Intensity Intensity
(Per square foot (Per square foot
of operating of operating
locations) locations)
BE(8¥5 Amount 2E (515
REXHE) M REXME)
26.44 1,890,713 26.78
0.59 28,699 0.41
0.34 16,461 0.23

Annual Report 2024 — & — [0 4F F #f

65



66

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R #HERERRE

To minimise energy consumption in its retail stores and
offices, the Company advocates the efficient use of energy
by adopting green technologies and close monitoring
on operations. As a retailer of luxury watches, the most
significant use of energy has arisen from the electricity
consumption in retail stores for air conditioning and
lighting. The Company monitors technology advancements
in lighting systems and upgrades the systems accordingly
SO as to increase overall operating efficiency.

Our energy use efficiency target focuses on the electricity
consumption of the Company. The Company has
established a five year reduction target for electricity
intensity of our core business by approximately 35% in
total. The estimated reduction target was established by
comparing the data of FY2021 as the baseline year. By
comparing FY2024 with FY2021, we already experienced
27.98% reduction for the electricity intensity. In addition,
the Company measures and records the energy
consumption on an on-going basis to analyse its energy
consumption efficiency.

Non-hazardous waste

Owing to the Company’s retail business nature, no
hazardous waste was produced during the Reporting
Period. The major type of non-hazardous waste was
paper used for administrative work and the details of non-
hazardous wastes created were as follows:

Unit Quantity
Type < Fid By YE

FY2024
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BRIRTHRIEMAMK  MAELES
Y BT

FY2023

RN —TCHE
Intensity Intensity
(Per square foot (Per square foot
of operating of operating
locations) locations)
BE(BYH Quantty — BE(8¥7H
ReEXitH) g2 REZME)
0.00040 28.07 0.00040

Non-hazardous waste ~ EEZREEY)
As compared to FY2023, total non-hazardous waste is
similar as there is no significant operational change in the
current reporting year. However, we will continue to strive
to adopt the following waste reduction measures to reduce
the total non-hazardous waste.
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To reduce office wastepaper, the Company has been
creating a paperless working environment through
increasing the use of internet system gradually. On one
hand, it reduces environmental damage; on the other hand,
it fits commercial goals, as this saves office space used
for storing hardcopies and facilitates efficient information
sharing via office network. Furthermore, double-sided
printing and copying has become compulsory in the
Company except for special circumstances with approval
obtained. Only used paper can be used as draft paper by
staff. Collection boxes have been put in place to collect
single-side used paper for reuse and other scrap paper
for recycling. These can help reduce paper consumption
and save costs substantially. To monitor the paper usage
efficiency, consumption records of paper and printing
have been regularly collected, assessed and monitored.

Our waste reduction target focuses on continuously
increasing the recycling rate within five years’ time by
comparing the data of FY2021 as the baseline year. The
amount of recycled paper for FY2024 and FY2023 are
5,596kg and 5,842kg respectively.

Use of packaging materials

We consume packaging bags and materials in our
business. During the Reporting Period, the packaging
materials consumed were as follows:

Packaging materials B M
Our data collection system for our packaging materials
include both normal packaging materials and all kinds of

shopping bags including recycled shopping bags.
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1,817 1,922
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All of the packaging bags distributed to customers
are made of FSC accredited paper which are more
environmentally friendly. Furthermore, the packaging
bags are designed to fit the product size in order to
avoid excessive packaging. Packaging bags will only
be distributed upon customers’ request. Our customers
have raised awareness of reducing the consumption of
packaging materials, and some customers even do not
request for recycling bags. In FY2024, our packaging
bag consumption decreased while our recycling bag
consumption increased because of the Company'’s
encouragement for using reusable eco bags.

Water consumption

We have newly collected the water consumption of Hong
Kong and Mainland China during this Reporting Period.
The water consumption is 660 m® (FY2023: 640 m?), with
the intensity value of 0.0094 m3 (FY2023: 0.0091 m®)per
square foot of operating locations by only considering
the floor area of Hong Kong and the Mainland China.
Our water efficient targets focus on implementing water
efficiency initiatives, which include raising the awareness
of our employees to cherish the water resources and
conducting regular inspections with timely repairs to
prevent water wastage.

Emissions
Owing to the nature of our retail business, the Company
has no production activities or facilities. Therefore, there

were no sewage discharge to the environment during the
Reporting Period.
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Air emissions

We maintain vehicles for our executives and customers, as
well as for delivery purposes. Such vehicles are the major
source of our air emissions. During the Reporting Period,
our air emissions details were as follows:

R

BPRITHRABREPREREREMNE
Ak - HEAEARRBERZIEIRZRE -
ERBAA - HAZREBBEHFHBOT

FY2024 FY2023

—S -t E —E_=BF

Unit Amount Amount

Source of emission* BEBUR ¢ By 2B =8
Nitrogen oxides (“NOX”) A&/ (TNOx]) tonnes Wi 0.44 0.31
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) ek (1SOx]) tonnes M 0.00101 0.00069
Particular matter (“PM”) BIZRT ([PM]) tonnes WA 0.041 0.029

Since we bought a vehicle for smooth business operation,
the air emissions data has experienced an increase with
comparison to FY2023. We are aware of the air emissions
generated from our use of vehicles so that we have
established internal procedures to reduce the negative
impact and ensure the compliance with the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC. For example, we monitored the
vehicle conditions on a regular basis and arranged the
vehicles for annual test by the local authority.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company’s major business is luxury watches retailing
in different geographical areas of the Greater China
region, the major direct greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 1 emission) of the Company came from the use
of vehicles. Our major indirect greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 2 emission) and other indirect greenhouse
emissions (Scope 3 emission) came from the electricity
consumption and paper use of offices and retail stores
respectively. The details of the greenhouse gas emission
(“CO,e") were as follows:

4 The calculation of air emissions was based on the “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Our total Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions in FY2024 has
experienced 1.00% increase as compared with FY2023,
and a 35.35% reduction as compared to the baseline year
(FY2021).

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions was
based on the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol” published by
World Resources Institute and World Business Council
on Sustainable Development, “Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, “Guidelines to Account for and Report
on Greenhouse Gas Emission and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong
Kong” by Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, “CLP
Sustainability Report 2023” by CLP Holdings Limited, “HONG
KONG Electric Sustainability Report 2023” by Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited, “CEM Sustainability Report 2022”
by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau, “FE £ X i & &
CERERBUMRER EEREERB(F17)” published by
the National Development and Reform Commission of the
PRC, and “2022 FE 2B EH FIHE A F" published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

Scope 1 emission, which include carbon emission from
vehicles.

Scope 2 emission, which include carbon emission from
electricity consumption by the Company.

Scope 3 emission, which include carbon emission from paper
usage by the Company.
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We are cautious about the environment and the carbon
footprints in our operations. We have put into practice
certain environmentally friendly initiatives in reducing
the greenhouse gas emission. We also strictly track our
established Group-wide five years reduction target for
the Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions of our core business. The
estimated reduction target was established by comparing
the data of FY2021 as the baseline year.

Environmental Impacts from Investments

As most of our retail stores are located at central business
areas, the Company endeavours to minimise its impacts
on the environment by identifying, assessing and
managing environmental impacts resulting from its various
operational activities regularly. For any significant impacts
identified, the Company will immediately formulate and
execute the corresponding mitigation measures and
monitor its effectiveness continuously to ensure the
impacts have been resolved.

External lighting

As a luxury watch retailer, the Company uses standout
advertising signs to attract customers, which may create
certain level of light. In view of that, the Company has
signed up to the “Charter on External Lighting” launched
by the Environment Bureau of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administration Region such that all
advertising signs of the retails stores would be switched
off between 11p.m. and 7a.m. on the following day. Apart
from reducing the impacts of light pollution, these actions
also help to reduce energy consumption throughout the
operations.

Renovation works

Renovation works are carried out regularly to ensure our
retail shops offer pleasant environment to customers
and to increase our bargaining power when negotiating
rental terms with landlords. As such, noise and dust
will be resulted from the renovation works and affect
the neighbourhood. Although all renovation works are
outsourced to third party contractors which the Company
has no direct control, we require our contractors to
execute all possible measures in mitigating the negative
impacts on the neighbourhood, for example, requiring
renovation works to be carried out during non-peak hours
and installing barriers to prevent dust and noise from
spreading out.
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Climate Change
Climate resilience

The management of the Company has a controlling
interest and will take adequate steps to build its resilience
to climate change by identifying and managing climate
change risks and opportunities and by developing
strategies which are in line with global best practices
to adapt to and mitigate the impact of climate change
on its operations. We acknowledge that both acute and
chronic physical risks in our principal operating locations
will impose an impact on our operations, which our retail
shops cannot open due to extreme weathers. To maintain
the health and safety of our employees, the Company has
established internal guideline of the work arrangement
under extreme weather conditions.

In order to mitigate the impact of climate change, we
reduced the carbon footprint through the establishment
and implementation of long-term carbon emissions
reduction targets. We encourage employees, suppliers
and customers to reduce carbon emissions in their daily
operations wherever practicable. We will adopt industry
best practices to improve energy efficiency in our
operations. In future, we will continue to develop relevant
policy to address climate with four major approaches
including mitigation, adaptation, resilience, and
disclosure. We would also collaborate with stakeholders
and the supply chain to develop contingency plans for
climate-related events.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engages in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91.

An interim dividend of 7.0 Hong Kong cents per share and
a special dividend of 21.5 Hong Kong cents per share
were declared and paid to the shareholders during the
year. A final dividend of 5.8 Hong Kong cents per share
and a special dividend of 17.2 Hong Kong cents per share
being proposed by the directors are subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000, dividend reserve of HK$112,093,000
and retained profits of HK$55,665,000.

Under the Companies Act 1984 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately
HK$55.5 million on the purchase of property, plant and
equipment. Details of these and other movements in
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

The management granted the loans and made the
investment mentioned in the note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Company’s
business strategies to widen its income base.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
(passed away on 25 March 2024)
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold
Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict
(apponted on 12 June 2024)

Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict obtained legal advice referred
to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 5 June 2024 and
he has confirmed he understood his obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2) and 87(1) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Sin Nga Yan, Benedict, Madam
Yeung Man Yee, Shirley and Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold,
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

EEMEERQ B RE TN E ARG L
AEBNERE CEERERIN AIAER
—FRARIEZREEL -

BE-_ET-_NME="A=1+—HIFEAXE
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BEREFLF LAWK ([FHERPERK
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W ARBELETARESHITESFRHH
EEFUNBNEARARAREABERSA
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Number of shares held

FERGHUE

Percentage of

Total issued share

Personal Family Corporate number capital of the

interest interest interest of shares Company

EARRABES

Name of director EEpE AR RikELR NEER K& REFDL

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BITREE 4,084,000 — (note (a)) 4,084,000 0.84%
(Wit (a)

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley ~ H&EL L 1,200,000 221,161 (note (b)) 1,421,161 0.29%
(W)

Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold BREEE — — 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.66%
(note (c))
(Wit (c))
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Notes:

(a) Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and his wife are the beneficial
owners of an aggregate of about 16.7% of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited, the beneficial owner
of 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments
Limited, which in turn is the beneficial owner of 80% of
the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited. He
is also the beneficial owner of about 14.3% of the issued
share capital of Real Champ Limited, the beneficial owner
of 20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings
Limited. Datsun Holdings Limited is the beneficial owner
of 127,776,000 shares in the Company. He is also the
beneficial owner of 2.5% of the issued share capital of Y.H.
Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of 25% of the
issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the
Company.

(b) Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner
of about 13.3% of the issued share capital of Realtower
Holdings Limited.

(c) Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, Harold is a director and has 24.5% interest
in Sun International Limited, which is the beneficial owner
of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of
the directors of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME, SHARE AWARD
SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(a) 2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 13
August 2013, a share option scheme was adopted
with effect on 3 November 2013 (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”).
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Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options might
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
held an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects included any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service
to the Group or business with the Group contributed
or was expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group. The purpose of the 2013
Share Option Scheme was to attract and retain quality
personnel and other persons to provide incentive
to them to contribute to the business and operation
of the Group. The total number of shares available
for issue under the 2013 Share Option Scheme
both as at 1 April 2023 and 2 November 2023, the
expiry date of such scheme, was 57,061,022 shares,
representing about 11.7% of the issued share capital
of the Company on the date of this report. No eligible
persons should be granted an option in any 12-month
period for such number of shares (issued and to be
issued) which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company had been obtained in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The exercisable
period was determined by the directors of the
Company, which should not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant, and might include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before it
could be exercised. The exercise price per share
payable on the exercise of an option equaled to the
highest of:

(a) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2023.
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(b)

No option had been granted, exercised or lapsed
under the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its
effective date on 3 November 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option under such scheme as at
31 March 2024.

2022 Share Award Scheme

On 27 June 2022 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted an employees’ share award scheme (the
“2022 Share Award Scheme”). The 2022 Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10
years commencing from the Adoption Date.

Under the 2022 Share Award Scheme, any employee,
executive, officer, or directors of the Company or of
any subsidiary are eligible for participation in the
scheme. The purposes and objectives of the 2022
Share Award Scheme are to recognise and motivate
the contributions by certain eligible persons and
to provide them with incentives in order to retain
them for the continual operation and development
of the Group and to help the Group in attracting
and recruiting suitable personnel as additional
employees to further the operation and development
of the Group, and to provide the eligible persons
with a direct economic interest in attaining the long-
term business objectives of the Group. The board
of directors shall not make any further award which
will result in: (i) the number of shares awarded by
the board under the scheme exceeding 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date; or (ii) the number of the shares held
by public shareholders falls below the minimum
percentage as prescribed under the Listing Rules.
The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to each selected person under the scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date. The total number
of awards available for grant under the 2022 Share
Award Scheme was 48,735,822 shares as at 1 April
2023, 31 March 2024 and the date of this report
respectively, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
Under the 2022 Share Award Scheme, there is no
provision on (a) the vesting period of awards to be
granted; and (b) the amount payable on application
or acceptance of the award and the period within
which payments or calls must or may be made or
loans for such purposes must be repaid. All these are
subject to the discretion of the board of directors of
the Company on the granting of an award under such
scheme.

For further details of the principal terms of the 2022
Share Award Scheme, please refer to the Company’s
announcement on 27 June 2022.

No share award has been granted under the 2022
Share Award Scheme since the Adoption Date.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2024, according to the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the share capital of the
Company:

FERR

RARIBIEEH KB EKFIZE 336 KR T
GFEZEEZMAT™ RZTE_MF=H
=t+—HBH UWFAX(XIFEABEEARBZE
ERESTBRAE)RARRRAGHES
M

Percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of the

shares held Company
EARRE BT
Name of shareholder RREHE iR & B RAE DL
Yeung Ming Biu HeERE 155,754,144 31.96%
Datsun Holdings Limited Datsun Holdings Limited 127,776,000 26.22%
Furama Investments Limited Furama Investments Limited
(Note 1) (Bt 1) 127,776,000 26.22%
Realtower Holdings Limited Realtower Holdings Limited
(Note 1) (Hiat 1) 127,776,000 26.22%
Ntasian Discovery Master Fund  Ntasian Discovery Master Fund 29,164,000 5.11% (Note 2)
(Hiat2)
TIG Advisors LLC TIG Advisors LLC 16,134,000 5.05% (Note 3)
(K17 3)
Notes: Bzt -

1. Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited, which holds 80%
of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, both Realtower Holdings Limited and Furama
Investments Limited are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company held
by Datsun Holdings Limited.

2. This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under
the SFO on 10 June 2016 on the basis of 570,610,224
shares then in issue.

3. This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under
the SFO on 15 January 2008 on the basis of 319,253,000
shares then in issue.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2024, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according
to the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

1. Realtower Holdings Limited# & Furama
Investments Limited B 8 77 i% 4X55% -
Furama Investments Limited 8l #
A Datsun Holdings Limited 2 %17
I&7A80% o ALt + IRIEFEFH R HAEEM -
Realtower Holdings Limited } Furama
Investments Limited ¥ # 13 & 1 Datsun
Holdings Limited Fr#§ 2 127,776,000 %
RABIRG PR ER

2. ZASWINBRE-_ZT—XRESNATHR
BEEFLBEKAGE ZT BN
570,610,224 W ERFE TN ET -

3. ZASHIIRE_ZEZENF—A+HH
BIEFHRAEKNNFE 2 R BN
319,253,000 % & B 2 TR D EEIE ©

BARRRIRIEE S KB E D5 336 1557
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INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
connected entity of a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group
and a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined
in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
for the provision of services to the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 93% of the Group’s total purchases while
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
was approximately 89% of the Group’s total purchases.

The aggregate sales during the year attributable to the
Group'’s five largest customers comprised approximately
0.8% of the Group’s total sales while the sales attributable
to the Group’s largest customer was approximately 0.3%
of the Group’s total sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any interest in the share capital of any of the
five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$370,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by
the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 13 to 36.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total of about 596
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (which
expired on 2 November 2023) and a share award scheme
as incentives to directors and employees of the Group,
details of the schemes are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share option scheme, share award scheme and
directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” above
and in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 22 to 26.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that the directors of
the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty except in respect of any of
their wilful negligence, wilful default, fraud or dishonesty.
The Group has taken out insurance to cover Directors’
liabilities to third parties.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.
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AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte

Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % BLA R

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 90 to 191, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % BRI R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

BARETTER

FARETFHRERBERMANIERHE - R
REAPGAVBRERNBARSERN
ZH - aLEREERMEABESEEM
BRELLABRRETRED - AT
SHELEHEHREBNER °

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Net realisable value assessment of watches
ik 2z i B FE TS

We identified net realisable value assessment
of watches included in inventories as a key
audit matter due to the significance of amount
of watches to the consolidated statement of
financial position as at the end of the reporting
period, and significant judgements and estimate
by management in determining the net realisable
value for watches.

MR EERN 2MPARNGEE BN R BEREX
HERBEBNEFEE A ZIRFERELERHE &
et il ARG ATEZERZAIZEFE
AHEREREEE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Group identifies slow-moving watches with
reference to the ageing analysis. The net
realisable value of the watches are determined
by considering the saleability of watches based
on current market conditions, pricing policies
and strategies, as well as the historical/latest
available sales information of watches. As at 31
March 2024, the carrying amount of watches (net
of allowance) is HK$438,663,000. The allowance
for slow-moving watches during the year and the
carrying amount of watches (net of allowance)
at 31 March 2024 are set out in notes 9 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

WU E IS mMEAM T 4P HE - BEEEEEES
ZIR O BRFHE R - BRA B TFEKE
WITHAR - EEBGR LK UREENBT &
MIHEEN ZREBRNAHEREEMETE - X%
“HFE=A=+—H ERNERESENKRER)
/3438,663,000/8 7T - FABHEBERBEBE LN T
—HWE=ZA=+—BEREEE(NKEE) D5
N E M IEmEM T K21 -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESF N AHERETSHEETEE

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable
value assessment of watches included:

BMERETER ERFENGNEFEE

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
allowance policy on watches and evaluating
management’s process in identifying slow-
moving watches and determining the
allowance for watches;

TR SEEMERBERR  FEEEEH
RIE S SE 8RB TE R AR T

o Evaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current
sales information, ageing and conditions of
inventories;

AEEEEBL2ELRITMN BERKNIEE
BR - EEHRERER Rk RFERAER
E B BIBUR

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimation of the net realisable value of
watches with reference to sales subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, if any, on
a sample basis.

AHER2E L MEREEZEN 2 M RERAH
E%ﬁi(ﬁﬂﬁ)Pﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ@éﬁ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % BLA R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X{T& B AR 2 A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % BRI R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Z%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ%éﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@
=1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % BLA R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Tsang Yiu Chung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2 /_\ = N2
%mﬁﬁ&
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Impairment losses recognised
under expected credit loss
(*ECL”) model, net

— trade and other receivables

Distribution and selling
expenses
— Expenses related to leases
— Other distribution and
selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of result of a joint venture

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Hitt 2 W=
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HE KA
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=N
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B B A
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%

Other comprehensive (expense) Efh 2w (B3 ) Uezs

income
Item that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”)

Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or

loss:

Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
operations

Reclassification of
cumulative translation

reserve upon deregistration

of a foreign operation
Change in fair value of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Release on redemption
of debt instruments at
FVTOCI

Other comprehensive expense
for the year
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Total comprehensive income for 4 A2 E W 25 4258

the year
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15

11

2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
3,638,758 3,704,677
(2,488,028) (2,515,967)
1,150,730 1,188,710
49,223 30,538
(3,854) 4,367
(3,559) (1,834)
(189,552) (203,629)
(353,950) (323,461)
(253,206) (252,912)
(13,663) (14,612)
16,578 13,116
(2,273) (225)
396,474 440,058
(145,324) (144,534)
251,150 295,524
(4,565) (77)
(64,378) (85,700)
497 —

— (44)

— (16)
(68,446) (85,837)
182,704 209,687




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEREREMEEHKER

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E-_WFE=A=+—HIFE

Profit for the year attributable to: LA N A T B FREF] -

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income

attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

ZAN/NTE 2 DN
FEFRRHE 28

A TATEEZE RS
AR
ZAN/NETE? 2N
FEPR R 28

BEF

2024 2023

—R_MlUEF —FB=F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
et THET TAT
250,488 295,432

662 92

251,150 295,524

182,093 209,661

611 26

182,704 209,687

13 51.40 HK cents
AL

60.62 HK cents

Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE MR R R

At 31 March 2024
R-FB-pFE=F=+—H

2024 2023
—E-NE B —4F
HK$’000 HK$jOOg
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #)3 - #28 KR 1@ 14 248,761 246,635
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15 238,132 314,213
Investment properties KREYE 16 35,155 8,261
Deposits for acquisition WY - #es NaRiE
of property, plant and Z1E®
equipment 360 2,400
Interests in associates RN ey 17 64,873 81,552
Interest in a joint venture R—HEEER A2 ER 18 21,831 24,430
Equity instruments at FVTOCI A FEAHMEE
Wz IRART A 19 27,835 13,359
Financial assets at fair value WAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss TREE
(“FVTPL") ) 20 18,695 15,007
Loan receivables FEWE 22 54,260 20,038
Deferred tax assets REFRIBE E 27 6,864 4,503
Property rental deposits MERSZS 34,023 32,169
750,789 762,567
Current assets MENVEE
Inventories FE 21 442,997 422,202
Loan receivables FEWE = 22 21,988 41,364
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE A EUWER K 23 254,065 295,359
Financial assets at FVTPL ZNFEFTAEBRZ
eREE 20 12,226 14,664
Taxation recoverable AR [O 718 6,776 4,319
Cash and cash equivalents HehERREIEAR 24 898,634 1,078,783
1,636,686 1,856,691
Current liabilities TEHAaE
Trade and other payables B REMENER 25 253,132 277,713
Contract liabilities aH8aE 25 6,868 20,677
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 132,560 121,724
Taxation payable FE I8 36,390 46,654
428,950 466,768
Net current assets mMBNE EFE 1,207,736 1,389,923
Total assets less current BELERRDHERE
liabilities 1,958,525 2,152,490
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIERE 27 28,693 26,162
Lease liabilities HEBRE 26 133,865 230,397
162,558 256,559
Net assets BEFE 1,795,967 1,895,931
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MR R

At 31 March 2024
R-FB-pWFE=/F=+—H

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital Ag A
Reserves ]

Equity attributable to owners of ZNARIEH A JE(LHEZS
the Company

Non-controlling interests JEPERS 2
Total equity R AR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 191
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
BT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HiTEE

Note
ok

28

2024 2023

—R_MlUEF —FB=F
HK$°000 HK$'000

THET TAT

48,736 48,736

1,745,434 1,846,009

1,794,170 1,894,745

1,797 1,186

1,795,967 1,895,931
HNEWAEEF 191 AZHFEPBHMERL

EEeR T _WFEA-+NHLER
BRETZE  UHTIESERARSE

Yeung Man Yee, Shirley

B8E

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
llV_\/EI\*EﬁT%%EjJ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

At 1 April 2022 A S
mA—-A
Profit for the year ER T

Change infar value of  BATFEFALM
equiyinstrumentsat 2 EWEZHRA
FVTOCI E&ZM{E

%)
Change In fair value of RATES \Lp
debt instruments at 2ENRBR
FvToCH TAVAFE

22

Exchange difference BRESNER
arising on translation of & 7
foreign operations EXZE

Release on redemption  EEEAF(EFA

of debt instruments at - Efs2EREZ
FVTOCI EXTAKER
Total comprehensive ERRAKELE
income for the year
2022 final dividend paid Sl

x
2022 special dividend paid 2F%-5--%F
ciBE
EER/ER%
“E-cF

2023 interim dividend
declared/paid

2023 interim special
dividend declared/paid

2023 final dividend e
proposed H
2023 special dividend ]

proposed ]

Transfer g

At 31 March 2023

Profit for the year

Change in fairvalue of  HATEF ALK
equiy instumentsat 2 EWEZRA
FVTOCI 1%2@%

224

Reclassification of RSB S 1R
cumulative ranslation BB Zs
reserve upon disposal of & EfE
a foreign operation

Exchange difference BEENER
arising on ranslation of  FiE4 7
foreign operations EXZE

Total comprehensive FREENRAE
income for the year

2023 final dividend paid ~ 2JF% %

2023 special dividend paid EZFJ[k
i
2024 interim dividend

declared/paid
2024 interim special
dividend declared/paid
2024 final dividend
proposed
2024 special dividend
proposed
Transfer &
Disposal of equity HERATEIA
instruments at VTOCI A2 Eka
ZREIA
At 31 March 2024 RZZ-mE
=h=t-8

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEAERS
Share Capital Asset Non-
Share Share option  Statutory redemption Capital revaluation ~ Special Translation  Retained  Dividend controlling
capital ~ premium reserve  reserve  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserve  Sub-total  interests Total
Ba  BHRE BREEE iERRE HORE  EARE  ERBRE  RAUBE  BERE  REER  REER Mt FERER Ghl
HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS00O  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0OO  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
BT T AT AT AT AT AT AT THT A7 BT AT AT A7
(note c) (note b) (note a)
(Hite) (o) (fita)

48736 303,250 - 77,258 425 840 3,667 5,180 97,858 1300413 197,380 2,035,007 1,160 2,036,167
- - - - - - - - - 2954% - 2954% R 29554
- - - - - - (1) - - - - (77) - (77)
- - - - - - (44) - - - - (44) - (44)
- - - - - - - —  (85634) - —  (85634) (66)  (85,700)
- - - - - - (16) - - - - (16) - (16)
- - - - - - (137) —  (85634) 295432 — 209,661 26 209,687
— — — - - - — — — —  (48736)  (48,736) —  (48,736)
— - - - - - - - — —  (148,644)  (148,644) —  (148,644)
- - - - - - - - — (38014 — (38014 - (38019)
- - - - - - - - —  (114529) — (114529 —  (114529)
- - - - - - - - —  (%552) 36,592 - - -
- — — — - - - - — (107219 107219 — - -
- - - 35,658 - - - - —  (35,6%8) - - - -

48,736 303,250 - 112,916 425 840 3,530 5,180 12,224 1,263,873 143,771 1,894,745 1,186 1,895,931
- - - - - - - - — 250488 — 250,488 662 251,150
- - - - - - (4,565) - - - - (4,565) - (4,565)
- - - - - - - - 497 - - 497 - 497
- - - - - - - - (64327) - -  (642327) (51)  (64,378)
- - - - - - (4,565) —  (63,830) 250,488 — 182,093 611 182,704
= = = = = = = = = — (36552 (36,552 - (36552
- - - - - - - - - - (107219)  (107,219) - (107219)
- - - - - - - - - (34,115) - (34,115) - (34,115)
- - - - - - - - —  (104,782) —  (104,782) —  (104,782)
- = = = - - - - - (28267) 28,267 = = -
= = = = = = = = —  (83,826) 83,826 = = =
- - - 35,293 - - - - - (35299 - - - -
- - - - - - (1,825) - - 1,825 - - - -

48,736 303,250 — 148,209 425 840 (2,860) 5180  (51,606) 1,229,903 112,093 1,794,170 1,797 1,795,967
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
IIV_\/El\*EﬁT%%Eb%%

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued
share capital and special reserves of those companies
which were acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these
acquired subsidiaries represent the credit arising on
reduction of their paid up share capital under the group
reorganisation.

Subsequent to NERBE ZKRMH BB AR (“Li Loong”)
becoming a subsidiary of the Company in May 2013, the
Group further subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong in
September 2013, for a cash consideration of New Taiwan
Dollar (“NT$”) 60,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,698,000).
The Group’s equity interest in Li Loong increased from 90%
to 96%. This is accounted for as a deemed acquisition
of additional interests in a subsidiary and has been
recognised as capital reserve.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation applicable to
enterprises established in the PRC to the statutory reserve.

HieE -

(a)

AEEZBRRERBEANRBMBETREA
AEEARRRE-NAN=FETEEE
MM B AR ETRARECEZR R
PTIREE 2 B 2 45 Bl i o % 5 AT UR BB P B8
RAZF I EE R R EERRRZSE
RAEHEBAMEE 2 HERK

RAOEBRBESRHOERAE ([ 8]
E_E—=FRAKALRRARZHBAT
% RZEBE—=ZFNLA AEEE—FR
% 6,000,000 i HEEMD - MEREAFH
& ¥ ([ % 4% ])60,000,000 7T (1 & %
15,698,000/87T) » NEBEN 15 2 i
1 90% AN ZE 96% ° It Yt BE A BRFI{E4E
TEW B — I B A R 2 BEIMERS » WEE

RihEARKME ([HE])IERE
EEZHEBZERLER - PEMBARA
5 E A R B S 1 % 2 10% FR
BEN BB R ERTE MR -

Annual Report 2024 — & — [0 4F F #f

95



96

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

Operating activities 4R AA B
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

AT IRB (L AE

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Impairment losses recognised
under expected credit loss, net

Gain on lease termination

Loss on deregistration of a
subsidiary

Loss on disposal of partial
interest in associates

Gain on redemption of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Allowance (reversal of allowance)
for inventories, net

Interest expense

Interest income

Loss (gain) on disposal/written
off of property, plant and
equipment

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of loan
receivables at FVTPL

Share of results of associates
Share of result of a joint venture

E I SIS
ZIE
EREEEZNE

BHEEREET

FERR R (B B 18 % 2R
BIFEE W
B ARz
&8

HERE QT
o BE

B O QP ER A A
2EPam BB TA
Z e

FEER (BEEE)
FER

M EF X

LB WA

HE MY - HeS
Ntz R (Was)

REPEATEZED

BAFEFABRRZ
TREEZAFEZ

FEREE N B 2 EE
EH—HEaERAZ
S
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2024
—E-mE

HK$°000
FHET

396,474

50,489
122,014

3,559
(2,696)

497

7,554

3,405
13,663
(31,417)

396

(259)

2,038

(3,442)

(16,578)

2,273

2023

— =

HK$ 000
FET

440,058

43,611
136,662

1,834

(3,384)
(13,116)

225




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

> A o —L
FmEHREMRER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables

(Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid in Hong Kong

Income taxes paid in the PRC

Income taxes paid in other
jurisdictions

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of financial assets at
FVTPL

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL

Purchase of equity instruments at
FVTOCI

Subscription on preferred shares
classified at amortised cost

Proceeds from disposal of equity
instruments at FVTOCI

(Payments for) refund of rental
deposits

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds from disposal of partial
interest in associates

Proceeds from redemption of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Advance to third parties as loan

receivables
Repayment from loan receivable

Net cash used in investing activities

M=
=FE (g m) b
%(%%%Tﬁ%”&EETA/W/J\

i%& LA FE A5 AR K CORLA)

ﬁ@uﬁ%@iﬁz
FIEER

B EREA 7RG F5

RE A
BMEME - HaEMERE

HEE - fEE R A
B

BERENE

BE A VB AR
SEAE

B A T A BRY
SHMEE FSHE

BERAFESAL LR
s 2 A T A

R B A D BN E
SR

R AT ES AR
i 2 A T A2 Fris
%8

()&
WYX BERREZ
Ji

BHESES

A T E AR
Mk Ez BB IR ZME
IR

[ 55 = 77 B RIE R IE WX

am

BERYWE
RERBAE RS FR

2024 2023
—EWE —E=HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F# T FHT
547,970 581,173
(36,810) 70,160
24,742 (104,814)
(19,455) 25,226
(13,805) (6,140)
502,642 565,605
(8,981) (1,160)
(140,567) (135,015)
(6,107) (7,456)
346,987 421,974
(53,123) (44,563)
589 3,120
(28,520) (8,196)
(36,403) (10,391)
33,115 —
(22,126) —
(4,210) —
3,085 —
(2,654) 4,479
(360) (2,400)
20,793 12,452
11,129 12,163
10,848 —
— 7,114
— (58,796)
= 47,926
(67,837) (37,092)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A =B
FRERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Interest paid on bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the

end of the year, represented by:

bank balances and cash

BB L

EfERE
BEHERE
ENHERERNE
ERRITERFNE
BERTER

i
ReRSARLER Y
W FE
FO2RERERNRE AR
SEEEEH 2 H2
FRIREREARS

HE B SRITHERR R
Re
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2024 2023
—E_E —E==
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
(282,668) (363,137)
(127,128) (124,295)
(13,663) (14,510)
— (102)
— (28,708)
(423,459) (530,752)
(144,309) (145,870)
1,078,783 1,282,442
(35,840) (57,789)
898,634 1,078,783




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and acts as an investment holding
company as well as engaged in watch trading. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 36. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
is detailed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 April 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
Model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

—KRER

RARTEBERAR([ALRF])
ARBREGZMA L ERRERA
Al DIREEBR AR W EERE
5 HXEMBARZEIEXHBERN
FIFE36 - ARARNMNEBHAR S
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BHRER I ARER —FI -
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KECEAERAEESMAEMME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
other new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction"

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:
(i) the Group has applied the new accounting

policy retrospectively to leasing transactions
that occurred on or after 1 April 2022;

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited B 5 &R 1T&£ B AR 2 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to

HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction"
(Continued)

(i) the Group also, as at 1 April 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the
extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for
all deductible and taxable temporary
difference associated with right-of-use-
assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance, except that the Group
discloses the related deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities of HK$8,316,000 as at 1
April 2022 on a gross basis in note 27 but it has
no impact on the retained profits at the earliest
period presented.

2. ERAMIERVB®REER
([ERMBHREER ] R
CHESE P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangemnet?
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2025.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of above amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary user. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

e  has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZREUNKBRFEREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SETHEK (&)
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBEREHN (£)

(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture RBELGR—BESELGZRK
5

Changes in the Group’s interests in associates and KEE ')7‘ HENGIREENAIZ

joint ventures BB

E#%%@TZ&%“WQQ%
NAIZIE  FRAERAIZE

BERRBE AR ZIRER - K

SEEBTRERZE ZFHE

EE SHIRBHRE TS ENTE
N

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

BEREASRBEARNIAN
NP L RN

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group

continues to use the equity method, the Group F AR RER - WD B
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the *& SB 2 ERE R EM B EK

aERAZWERERENLE
HEEELBBEREHN ‘*EETE

gain or loss that had previously been recognised

in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

o v BIARSEE &% Watsk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEAUBRRFEBREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SIHE(E)
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBKRERN (&)

(Continued)

Leases HE

The Group as a lessee KEEERANA
Lease modifications MEEHR

The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability, less any lease incentive
receivables, based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

SHBRERRERRE A
S ()

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBEREHN (£)

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rate fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
current and deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit before taxation because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

SHBRERRERRE A
S ()

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBEREHN (£)

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the
time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arises
from initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interest in a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for
freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

SHBRERRERRE A
S ()

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBEREHN (£)

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities and provision for restoration in which
the tax deductions are attributable to ultimate
costs incurred, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities, the
provisions for decommissioning and restoration
and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
the taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in OCI or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in OCI or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEVBBRRBREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SIHE(E)
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBKRERN (&)

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building elements and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash
generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or a
group of cash-generated units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or a group of cash-generated units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generated units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generated units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for
sale, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated on a specific
identification basis for watches. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BER-—FE_mE=F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following

conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash
flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZREUNKBRFEREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SETHEK (&)
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBEREHN (£)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EETA(E)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of TREECHEREEFE(E)

financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OCI if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term;

e oninitial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required to
be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_NF=F=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised
cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the asset revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends
are included in the “other gains and losses”
line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_[WFE=F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI nor designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss included
any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

SHBRERRERRE A
HIE ()

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EASHBEREHN (£)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EETA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets THEREHEE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the asset revaluation reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination on lease term of contracts with
extension options

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease
term for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include extension option, specifically, the leases
relating to retail shops. The assessment of whether
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension
options impacts the lease term, which significantly
affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Determination on lease term of contracts with
extension options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
including economic incentives/penalties for
exercising or not exercising the options. Factors
considered include:

° contractual terms and conditions for the optional
periods compared with market rates (e.g.
whether the amount of payments in the optional
periods is below the market rates);

e the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken
by Group; and

The details of the leases with extension option are set
out in note 15.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_NF=F=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Net realisable value assessment of watches

Watches are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The management of the Group
reviews regularly the suitability of allowance policy
and estimates the amount of allowance for inventories.
The Group identifies slow-moving watches with
reference to the ageing analysis. The net realisable
value of the watches are determined by considering
the saleability of watches based on current market
conditions, pricing policies and strategies, as well
as historical/latest available sales information of
similar watches. If conditions which have an impact
on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/
improve, additional allowances/reversal of allowances
may be required. Details of the reversal of allowance
for slow-moving watches credited during the year and
the carrying amount of watches (net of allowance)
as at 31 March 2024 are set out in notes 9 and 21,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s revenue represents consideration
received or receivable from sales of watches.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is analysed
based on the geographical markets of the goods
sold, which is consistent with the basis of the Group’s
organisation for managing the business operations.

Specifically, the Group had three operating segments,
being (a) Hong Kong, (b) the PRC and (c) Macau. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in
time)

For sales of watches, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the retail
shop, including those sales through department
stores. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases
the goods. A credit period of not more than 30 days
is granted to department stores who receive the
payment on behalf of the Group at the point the
customer purchases the goods.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BER-—FE_mE=F=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaRkoER (&)

(Continued)
Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in HEER(WENE—KEAMER)
time) (Continued) (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment NTRASEREEDHE D 29D
revenue and results by operating segments: Wzt REEDIT -
Segment revenue —
recognised at
a point in time Segment profit
DEB S — R pal |
2024 2023 2024 2023
- LB T —F bl T — 5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong 55 943,518 1,008,210 35,644 80,030
The PRC h 2,570,663 2,559,988 471,223 475,505
Macau SRS 124,577 136,479 17,327 24,673
3,638,758 3,704,677 524,194 580,208
Unallocated other AOBCE MU A
income 29,439 14,060
Unallocated corporate KO B
expenses (166,301) (169,378)
Unallocated other gains 7% fid H b Ug 25
and losses K &8 (5,163) 2,379
Interest on bank loan IRITERA A = (102)
Share of results of JEfE B NRZ
associates o 16,578 13,116
Share of result of a joint JE{E —fE& &
venture NE)ZEE (2,273) (225)
Profit before taxation MR A% BT 3 A 396,474 440,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in
time) (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit before taxation earned by each
segment without allocation of interest on bank loan,
share of results of associates and a joint venture,
unallocated other income, unallocated other gains
and losses, and unallocated corporate expenses.
Unallocated corporate expenses include auditor’s
remuneration, directors’ emoluments, expenses
of the Group’s headquarter which are unallocated
between the operating segments and operating
expenses of inactive companies. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over
10% of the total revenue of the Group for any of the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_NF=F=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION S.

(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point in
time) (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segments.

WKk o HER (EF)

HEER(KaRE-SFBHBER)
(%)

UTRAREREEDHME D ZEE
HEEENHT

Segment assets Segment liabilities
DEREE oWMEE

2024 2023 2024 2023
- il T —F EEaefulal T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET FHET TET
Hong Kong B8 552,601 661,075 242,313 354,847
The PRC s 592,454 565,555 155,920 129,931
Macau B PI 72,698 86,072 48,339 64,896
Segment total B AR ET 1,217,753 1,312,702 446,572 549,674
Unallocated Ko 1,169,722 1,306,556 144,936 173,653
Group’s total REE BT 2,387,475 2,619,258 591,508 723,327

The segment assets by location of assets are the
same as by location of markets of the goods sold.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than investment properties, interests in
associates, interest in a joint venture, equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at
FVTPL, loan receivables, deferred tax assets,
taxation recoverable, cash and cash equivalents,
and other unallocated corporate assets; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax
liabilities, and other unallocated corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results
or segment assets:

Additions of Depreciation of
property, plant Additions of Gain on property, plant
and equipment right-of-use assets lease termination and equipment
FENR HERIR FERRREE REEYE 0% RERRERE
223 2023
C5cE 3ok
HK$000 HKS 000

T

7L

5.

Wk o EMER (&)

Hit o &R

AENHEEROHEERERZE
B

o

(Loss) gain on (Allowance)
disposalluritten off Impairment losses reversal
Depreciation of of property, plant recognised of allowance
right-of-use assets and equipment under ECL model for inventories
LE/MENE B3R BHRREREAT
[FRREENE Rz (B8 0 EANEER (B BRED

223 223 2023
S S %k et
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000

TEL T Fr

Hngkorg &3 W6 B W % - B N R I M e R N ) - ey e
TePRC B WIS 2% T T Ceam @) QeTE) (g0 20 o3 (S (18 (o) 10
Mecau il 5 - - 5m = - @ (00 (% 2o = - = B VS
Segmentand ~ APREEE

Gopstoel 43 BEN 000 6 B 26 S AR (B6) (220 (%6 (%) el (S (184 (A 2%

Note: The amounts of interest in associates and share
of results of associates, and the interest in a joint
venture and share of result of a joint venture, are
presented to the CODM as a whole but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment
assets.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, loan receivables, deferred tax
assets, interests in associates and interest in a joint
venture) by geographical location of the assets is
detailed below:

Hong Kong S
The PRC s
Macau R
Other Hit

Kia - B2 DAz fm R EG R E N F]
ZEBARR—HEERE 2
REE—FHAERBZEELHRE
REBEREFLERRE BT
BIREFEDENE N HEEL D F

REEMEMREI D 2 AKEIFRD
BE(TMBRERAFEFAAEMER
Wz AT A - BAFEFARR
ZEREE  BWER  ETHEAE
E - REEnrzEakn—Eas
NAE| 2 ) CERFRIT

Carrying amount of
non-current assets

FRBEEZREE

2024 2023
—E_MMEF —E-=

HK$°’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
349,450 455,369
124,899 76,103
46,927 63,945
35,155 8,261
556,431 603,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HWA

Interest income from bank RITH B YA

Interest income from loan HHEEK AT EZERE
receivables at amortised cost K B WA

Interest income from rental MekreMERA
deposits

Government subsidies (note) B F# 8 (B15E)

Rental income WA

Others Hb

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recognised government grants in respect of COVID-
19-related subsidies, including subsidies from
the Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong Government of HK$4,440,000 (2024:
Nil). The remaining government subsidies for both
years mainly comprised of unconditional subsidies
received for subsidising the Group’s business in the
PRC.
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2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
20,793 12,452
9,528 1,608
1,096 888
9,487 9,644
1,179 100
7,140 5,846
49,223 30,538
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Changes in fair value of loan

receivables at FVTPL EBH o NEEE
Changes in fair value of financial AT EFAEBRmZ SR
assets at FVTPL BET NE(EEE
Change in fair value of investment & &Yz 2 A F(EE
properties
Loss on deregistration of a TS —EME AR ZEE
subsidiary
Loss on disposal of partial HEMENTHOER Y
interest in associates E518

Gain on lease termination IR E W

(Loss) gain on disposal/written
off of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on redemption of debt

&z (BE) Wk

instruments at FVTOCI HWmcBBIAZ
Wz
Net exchange gains b H, 55 )5 58
Others Hth

8. FINANCE COSTS

RITERZFE
HEREBEZHE

Interest on bank loan
Interest on lease liabilities

BRAFEF ABZ 2 B

HE MEYE - R

BORAFEFAEME

HiuWmRkEE

2024 2023
—E_NE —TE=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
3,442 3,384
(2,038) (1,710)

259 65

(497) —
(7,554) —
2,696 —
(396) 1,616

— 16

282 996

(48) —
(3,854) 4,367

& R A

2024 2023
—E-UEFE —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET

— 102

13,663 14,510
13,663 14,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBIAIER

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Profit before taxation has been B 5% Al e A 2 0Bk -
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) E=E& (K17 10) 111,787 121,548
Other staff costs H A8 8 A 169,648 163,180
Other staff’s retirement benefits HA B8 <RIBS

scheme contributions it 4,547 4,255
Total staff costs BB ANERR 285,982 288,983
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI B & 3,600 3,500
Cost of inventories recognised as RERAI 2 FEK

expense (including allowance K(BEGFERE

for inventories of HK$3,405,000 3,405,000 % 7T

(2023: reversal of allowance for —EI=F:FE

inventories of HK$24,394,000)) BB B 24,394,000

BIT)) 2,488,028 2,515,967

Depreciation of property, plant M ERRBEITE

and equipment 50,489 43,611
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEEZIE

assets 122,014 136,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E-_WFE=A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZHME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BEERITHRER 2 AN FEHMIHRE
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing A LETARREERRHEDIHKE -
Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The ENHEMNARB(ZEZ=F : R4)
emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2023: BEEZAZHENT -

six) directors were as follows:

2024 2023
“EopE 3

Retirement Performance- Retirement  Performance-

Salaries benefits related Salaries benefits related

and other scheme incentive and other scheme incentive
Fees benefits contributions bonus Total Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total

¥eR  BHEA *EEE Fek  BIEH RBAE
Be  EfER  HEERR  RBRA it Be BB HEHER AN it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FET FET FET AT AT AT AT AT

(note) (note)

(Hit) (W)

Executive directors ~ #7%%
Mr. Yeung HimKit, — $Brins

Dennis - 4,685 540 60,000 65,225 — 4723 540 66,000 71,263
Madam Yeung Man ~ B&ELT
Yee, Shirley - 1,768 245 20,000 22,013 — 1,638 227 22,000 23,865
Mr.LamHingLun,  #EEEE
Alain - 3,253 396 20,000 23,649 - 3,142 378 22,000 25,520
Independentnon-  BUFHTES
executive directors
Dr. Li Sau Hung, FAERL
Eddy' 300 - - - 300 300 — - — 300
Mr. Choi Man By
Chau, Michael 300 - - - 300 300 - - - 300
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe, LN Vi
Harold 300 - - - 300 300 - - - 300
900 9,706 1,181 100,000 111,787 900 9,503 1,145 110,000 121,548
Note: During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, Wit  BEZZE-NFR-T=-=F=A
the performance related incentive bonus payments =+ —RHIEFE - RFBHEBE
are determined with reference to the operating AR ELEFEREAREBE
results and individual performance. JE °
! Passed away on 25 March 2024 1 RIZE-ME=A - +ABFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREESZME (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is also the managing
director of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2023:
three) directors of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2023: two) highest paid individuals
are as follows:

Employees ==
— basic salaries and allowances  — E7ZAR# 4 KI=EAL
— bonus — B4

— retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Note: The bonus is determined based on performance of
the employees.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

— RREFE B

BITHREENRARB ZEFTRE
2 EXEEEMe BREIERTT
BARERERG 2T -

EXFRTRATES ZME IR ER
REBAEEARRIMNAKRESEH 2
R MM o EXFIRBILIFAITE
M IR BEEFETARRESA
R Z RIS ©

BEMS

IS FMALRE=2(_F
T=F ZR)ARAEE BEZ
FALTZHMESFBERN £ - AERrM
f(ZF_=F: MB)ReasMAL
ZMEwT

2024 2023
—E-UE —TE=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
4,240 3,540
7,500 7,795

84 81

11,824 11,416

Bfat - EATVENEERRMETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZME (Z)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Employees’ emoluments (Continued) EEMS (&)
The emoluments were within the following bands: MeeEENT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2024 2023
—E_E —_Eg-=
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 8L E
4,000,000 %8 7T 1 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 &L=
8,000,000 % 7T 1 1

RAFE  MEESHITRAIME

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year. No emoluments were
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company
and/or five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or as compensation for loss of office.

R BERBEMNH M LB - NEE
VEMARNREER, SRS
A L SAHERTBNE - (/500 B2 3R A
SKRERAE o

Annual Report 2024 — & — [0 4F F #f

135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax: NERTRIA
Hong Kong BB

PRC Enterprise Income Tax H B {b ZEFT IS A

Other jurisdictions HE b RDERERR

Withholding tax on dividend BEARIREBAZ
income from associates M

Withholding tax on dividend EARIREWAZ
income from subsidiaries A

Under (over) provision in prior BEFERETR

years: (HBEEEE) -

Hong Kong BB

Other jurisdictions HEib R AR

Deferred taxation charge (credit) EZERIEL H (FKHE)

(note 27) (Htit27)

Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years is calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years, after setting off of tax losses brought
forward, if any.

Taxation in other jurisdictions mainly represent Macau
SAR Complementary Tax, which is calculated at the
rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profits for
both years.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited B 5 &R 1T&£ B AR 2 A

1. i8R X

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
1,788 512
119,864 120,626
2,556 2,347
2,337 2,554
15,017 20,779
141,562 146,818
2,475 2,857
1,211 (615)
3,686 2,242
76 (4,526)
145,324 144,534

WEFE 2 BB FRIZFAGEFE
BN 2 16.5%tE - EAEE
—FRB AR (ABREHMAS T2
BERRA) BRI ZMBARIZE
2,000,000 /% JT & 2R 7 2 £/ 12 8.25%
TR - SR T ERB R F A
£ 16.5% 2 TR BNFRIE o

RIBSRBIBEMAEHE) ([REME
BOE]) R(EEMBTERE RG] -
REBEHEEE 2 RBERE(WE)
REEFERENBERRIZRER
25% °

iy FRIRE 2 BEE ERPISE
PR - A 2 (i iR
BRI 12% 318 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable income tax
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of share of result of a
joint venture

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of temporary
differences attributable
to undistributed profits of
associates and a joint venture

Tax effect of temporary
differences attributable
to undistributed profits of
subsidiaries

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions

Underprovision in prior years

Utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised
Income tax at concessionary rate
Others

Tax expense for the year

B A% Bl &
RIBERAFEHRE16.5%
—E=F :16.5%)
FrE 2 IR
Eﬁ%%@TZ%ﬁz
M2
%m=$TNM”“Iz%%
IR

A HMFBALT 2 MG E
BERFRRAZ RGTE

RERRBEBRZRE
s/ 4
BaEnrk—RAE QA
R o3 IE ) AG 2 B By
ERIRBRE

BB~ B R R & A FEAE
CERERIMETE

REMRLAEREE 2
Y /&8 2 =) P 2 A N )
MR8
BEFERETE

B 2 A ARER 2 B
&8

BEVEMAEHR
H At

FABEXZ N

1. BHEX (&)

FAREMX A BRBERAER A
fib 2 [0 W 28 5% 2 BR B A0 4t A Bk 40

N
2024 2023
—E_NE —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
396,474 440,058
65,418 72,610
(2,735) (2,164)
375 37

3,407 2,076
(7,178) (8,603)
22,646 22,873
3,799 2,784
16,069 16,338
39,518 39,464
3,686 2,242
(185) (2,651)
(165) (165)

669 (307)
145,324 144,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

12. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Interim dividend for financial year
ended 31 March 2024 of 7.0 HK
cents (2023: 7.8 HK cents) per
share on 487,358,224 (2023:
487,358,224) shares

Interim special dividend for financial
year ended 31 March 2024 of 21.5
HK cents (2023: 23.5 HK cents)
per share on 487,358,224 (2023:
487,358,224) shares

Final dividend for financial year
ended 31 March 2023 of 7.5 HK
cents (2022: 10.0 HK cents) per
share on 487,358,224 (2022:
487,358,224) shares

Special dividend for financial year
ended 31 March 2023 of 22.0
HK cents (2022: 30.5 HK cents)
per share on 487,358,224 (2022:
487,358,224) shares

Dividends proposed after year end
(note):
Proposed final dividend for financial
year ended 31 March 2024 of 5.8
HK cents (2023: 7.5 HK cents)
per share on 487,358,224 (2023:
487,358,224) shares

Proposed special dividend for
financial year ended 31 March
2024 of 17.2 HK cents (2023:
22.0 HK cents) per share on
487,358,224 (2023 487,358,224)
shares

FRNEERRDRLKE |

1% 487,358,224 %

(ZZ =4 : 487,358,224f%)
BOtEZBE_S-_NF
ZAZT-BLYREFEHRH
BB =R 7.0
(ZZ-=%:7.85(l)

1% 487,358,224 1%

(qu F 1 487,358,224 /%)
Bt EZHE_Z-_NF
ZAZT-BULYREFEHRH
BRI BB 21.5 8L
(ZZ==% : 23.5%(l)

1% 487,358,224 1%
(72::& 487,358,224f% )
BB HE-_S-_=F
ZAZT-BULYREFERY

BEER 7.5
(ZEZZF :10.0/81L)

1% 487,358,224 %
(ZZ 4 : 487,358,224f%)
BOtEZHE-_E-=F
ZAZT-BULYREERR
BB &M 22.0 L
(ZEZ-ZF:30.5%1)

FRERIK B (W)

1% 487,358,224 %

(ZZ =% :487,358,224/%)
BOstEZBE_S-NF
ZAZ+-BLYREERR
FEMR S =k 5.8 81
(ZEZ=F:75%1)

1% 487,358,224 1%

(ZZ =% :487,358,224/%)
BOstEZBE_S-_NF
ZAZ+-BLYREFEERR
BRI SR 17278
(ZEZ=F:22.0/)

12. R E

2024 2023
—ECNF —“Eo=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
34,115 38,014
104,782 114,529
36,552 48,736
107,219 148,644
282,668 349,923
28,267 36,552
83,826 107,219
112,093 143,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend and a special dividend for the year ended
31 March 2024 have been proposed by the directors
of the Company and are subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

12. RE (&)

Biit - RERPRE - AAREFHIK
BHE-_Z-_MW&E=A=+—HIt
FEZRERE MRS - I
FREREREREBFAS it
fE o

13. BREF

ARABEEANRIGEERERREE
BRI TIRIBIAT BB H

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings ZF
Earnings for the purposes of STEEREARANEERF
basic and diluted earnings BRI (EKRBHER A
per share (profit for the year FEIEFREF])
attributable to owners of the
Company) 250,488 295,432
2023
TE-=F
‘000
FhE
Number of shares R ER
Weighted average number of EERERNREERAT
ordinary shares for the purpose 27 @R iNkE T8
of basic and diluted earnings
per share 487,358 487,358
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COST

At 1 April 2022
Exchange adjustment
Additions
Disposals/written off

At 31 March 2023
Exchange adjustment
Additions
Disposals/written off

At 31 March 2024

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2022
Exchange adjustment
Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals/

written off

At 31 March 2023
Exchange adjustment
Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals/

written off

At 31 March 2024

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

A
N-F-—ENA-H
5 A%

ANE

HE /i

A—E-=F=HA=1-H

I 5 A
AE
HE /i

WZEZNF=A=1—H

ik
RZE-—FMA—H
[E 5%
RERRE

HE /MRE S

R-B-=F=f=t1-H

B 5 A2
AERRE
HE /M

RZF-ME=A=+-H

EHE

RZE-ME=A=+-H

RZB-=F=f=t1-H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_T-_NFE=F=+—HIFE

14. W% - EERRHE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE e i
THRET NELHE RERRG RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT
191,266 188,569 91,177 4,306 475,318
(1,868) (4,382) (1,853) — (8,109)
— 24,842 17121 7,077 49,040
(1,182) (9,021) (1,105) — (11,308)
188,216 200,008 105,340 11,383 504,947
(1,263) (3,998) (1,167) — (6,428)
— 48,038 6,326 1,159 55,523
- (20,182) (2,339) (647) (23,168)
186,953 223,866 108,160 11,895 530,874
57,427 124,703 46,200 2,840 231,170
(1,388) (3,839) (1,423) — (6,650
3,984 27,079 11,494 1,054 43611
(743) (8,750) (326) — (9,819)
59,280 139,193 55,945 3,894 258,312
(1,021) (2,628) (856) — (4,505)
4,260 32,872 11,951 1,406 50,489
- (19,729) (2,045) (415) (22,183)
62,519 149,714 64,995 4,885 282,113
124,434 74,152 43,165 7,010 248,761
128,936 60,815 49,395 7,489 246,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. M3 - WBRRE(E)
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items IERIZEFEATHEREMEY
of property, plant and equipment, using straight-line ¥ MBLRBEEE 2K :
method at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold land and Over 20 years for those located METHWREF URTPHABA
buildings in the PRC or 50 years for 20 F AL R
those located in Hong Kong HBRI50F
Leasehold 20% - 33'/5% or over the lease HEMEREE 20% — 33"/3% 3k
improvements terms, if shorter 1R B (ARG
HRE)
Furniture, fixtures 10 - 20% R KER 10 — 20%
and equipment B
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
Owner-occupied leasehold land located in Hong HARUREARTECEFTBERAEE
Kong and the PRC is included in property, plant and Tz THE D RIEFE D TEER]
equipment because the allocation between the land eEln - WEFEREE LA
portion and building portion cannot be made reliably. M - HES MR o
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The carrying value of property V¥ 2 REBERE
comprises:
Properties located in: (R SENEIb: k- v/
Hong Kong BB 121,257 124,444
PRC Fh 3,177 4,492
124,434 128,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_T-_NFE=F=+—HIFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024
Carrying amount

As at 31 March 2023
Carrying amount

Expenses related to leases

Expenses relating to short-term
leases

Variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of
lease liabilities

Depreciation for the year

Analysed as:
Distribution and selling
expenses
Administrative expenses

Additions to right-of-use assets

Total cash outflow for leases

15. FRAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FET
R-EBE-_WE=HA=+—H
BRMEE 238,132
R=-B-=%=H=+—H
BREE 314,213
2024 2023
—E-NE —Eo=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
HECZHBRER
HEHEEERE A
20,329 21,354
SFEHEARERITESA
Z A #HE A
59,400 56,420
FRITE 122,014 136,662
201,743 214,436
DA -
DN EERY
189,552 203,629
TR 12,191 10,807
201,743 214,436
FRAEEEEM 107,146 39,943
HERS AL AT 220,520 216,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EREEE (&)

For both years, the Group leases various retail shops
and offices for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed terms of 1 year to 7 years (2023:
1 year to 8 years), but may have extension options as
described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
entered into new lease agreements for the use of
leased properties for 1 year to 5 years (2023: 1
year to 5 years). The Group recognised additions
to right-of-use assets of HK$87,948,000 (2023:
HK$15,005,000) and related lease liabilities of
HK$87,468,000 (2023: HK$14,990,000) upon
commencement of leases, which constitute non-
cash transactions. In addition, lease terms of certain
leases were extended through modification and the
Group recognised additions to right-of-use assets
of HK$19,198,000 (2023: HK$24,938,000) and
related lease liabilities of HK$18,913,000 (2023:
HK$24,616,000) at the effective date of modification.
Furthermore, during the year ended 31 March 2024,
before the commencement of the extension period
of a lease, the Group had entered into a renewal
agreement with term of years shorter than the term
of years per extension option and accordingly, the
Group recognised reduction to right-of-use assets of
HK$54,812,000 and lease liabilities of HK$55,596,000
as the lease was considered modified (2023: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
early terminated a lease which constitute lease
modification. As a result, the Group has derecognised
right-of-use assets of HK$4,123,000 and lease
liabilities of HK$6,819,000, and a gain on lease
termination of HK$2,696,000 was recognised in profit
or loss (2023: Nil).

FW“ET AEEREZEHES
BAEEERMAE - HEAKAEE
ﬂ% ELF(ZT=F: —EN
TR EEARERE &%@Wﬁﬁ
) - MERKIVIRE R EERmH
%ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁxﬁTHH%f@
K o & TE A & 15K M A A A i B
RER > ARERHGHZIESR I
REARFIBITE K 2 HIF -

HE-_ZT-_NMF=A=+—H1tF
B AEERFERAEE %%Jiﬁ
HEWwE AR—ZRF (==
E:fiﬂi):$%lﬁmﬁﬁ%
B iE RN B (% 3 #E & E 87,948,000
BIL(ZZE =4 : 15,005,000/&7T)
&*ﬁfﬁa"ﬂiaiéfa87,468,ooo;‘%ﬁ<:
T =4 : 14,990,000/ 7T ) * B
RERH - o BETFRLYBEB
BERmER - mMAEBEMERERA
HEE RERIE AN AR & = 19,198,000
B ( ZF = = 4 : 24,938,000/
7T) MARBEE E B (518,913,000 7T
(=T - =4 :24,616,000/8 7T ) °

o REBEE-E-_MF=/A=+—
HIEFE  REECERBMARA - &
SECFIVEEWR  FHENSHE
EREEENTFH  Hit - aRHEE
WARBEBN  NEEEREHES
ER 4548120008 Tt N HEA G
B 55,596,000 T(Z T =4 :
m) o

REBEE-_ZT_NF=-A=1+—HIF
B AEBRAIKLE—EENEERZ
MHEE - Flt - REBKIEERE
FHEEE4123,000 8 T hNHEARE
6,819,000/8 7T * WA E BRI
FHEWZ2696,000B (==
F|E) o
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The Group regularly entered into short-term lease for
retails shops in the PRC with duration of one year or
less and the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
for both years. The decrease in expenses relating to
short-term leases is due to less retails shops leased
in the PRC during the year.

Variable lease payments

Leases of retail shops, excluding short-term leases,
are either with only fixed lease payments or contain
variable lease payment that are based on certain
percentage of sales. The payment terms are common
in retail shops in Hong Kong and the PRC where
Group operates.

For leases of retail shops that contain both fixed lease
payments and variable lease payment that are based
on 8% to 14% (2023: 8% to 14%) of sales, the amount
of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable to
relevant lessors for the years are as below:

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Number
of shops

IEHRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EREEE (&)

AEERPERTEEEHTLEHE
§ MHR—FURN - BREHBEE
HEXMESERE - SHHEERE
XL TIBERAFRETEEES
S5 NRATEL

EEENRK

ZEEZHEMTERREEHEE) 2
FEEHENRL B SR ZEHENK
(EDERETADLHER) - (I3
FFRRAREETERTRZEZT
EETVBEE -

RERETCHENAZAABEERHE
ERBEZ8% 2 14% _?__E 8%
114%>Z‘Wﬁﬂiaﬁmzy EIEM
g RUTFEEEN BN THEEH
MAZETERAS2HENREEN
T

BEr_E_FE=ZF=+—HIFEF

Fixed Variable Total

payments payments payments

BEMR AR  AREHE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEIT T TET

Retail shops without AIBEENRZ
variable lease 9?\’%)3
payments 10,944 — 10,944
Retail shops with REAEHENRZ
variable lease TEE
payments 33,626 59,400 93,026
44 570 59,400 103,970
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EREEE (&)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

AEEEARE)
HBE—E_—F=-H=+—HIFE

Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments
EHEAE & E 4R CIE S0 EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Retail shops without T RAIEHENTRZ
variable lease ?\%E
payments 10 10,647 — 10,647
Retail shops with REAEHENTKZ
variable lease TEE
payments 13 32,908 56,420 89,328
23 43,555 56,420 99,975
The overall financial effect of using variable payment FERABNRGER BB REER

terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by
shops with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are
expected to continue to represent a similar proportion
of shops sales in future years.

Extension options

The Group has extension options for certain leases
of retail shops. This is used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Group’s operations. The extension option held

HERB R EHMEEZEERA
B o MHARRZF - AJ#HSMAX
REBHENEREERIMEEL
& o

mERER

AEERETEEEZHERE

HE=E ARTEREAERS @Ffr
AEETECZEERTEERK
PrsA B ERRETRAAEET

is exercisable only by the Group and not by the f# - HEEEATEITE -
respective lessor.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date rEERBEERRE B 5 /ETE/:T

whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The directors of the Company
concluded the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
all leases with extension options considering all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives for exercising the options. As at 31 March
2024, the carrying amount of lease liability over the
periods of extension option is HK$44,948,000 (2023:
HK$160,554,000).

BEGTHERE E% EEE—

HEEE MR (BIETTE] \ET%EZ
KELEFA)  ARAIBEERT ' &
SEAEETETEEMEEE - R
—E-NMFZA=+—H - EHEE
e B ERMEEA44,948,000 5
T(ZZT =% : 160,554,000/& ) °
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Extension options (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee.
During the year, there is no such triggering event.

Restriction on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$266,425,000
(2023: HK$352,121,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$238,132,000 (2023:
HK$314,213,000) as at 31 March 2024. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease
liabilities are set out in notes 26 and 35.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2023, lessors of
various retail shops provided rent concessions to the
Group through reductions ranging from 23% to 100%
over three months (2024: Nil).

The Group opts not to apply the practical expedient
on application of Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-
19-related rent concession”. Changes in lease
payments were assessed under the general
requirement of HKFRS 16 and accounted for as lease
modifications. The relevant rent concessions resulted
in the reduction of the Group’s carrying amount of
right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities of
HK$850,000 with the combined effect of revised
lease payments from the rent concessions and the
reduction in the revised incremental borrowing rates
determined upon the date of modification (2024: Nil).

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X{T& B AR 2 A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EREEE (&)

mHREE(E)

EHEBAFHIORTEAZGHER
ZIBRBELEBREBE  AEBEH
AL RERETEEREEE -
RAEE  HEBEEMF -

BEZRF

AN B = E—mE=A=+—
B2 fHE{F B#E & E 238,132,000 %
T(ZZ - =4 :314,213,000/8 7T )
REE A 5266,425,000%8 (=
T =4 :352,121,000/8 ) - M
EmEtERFIMZE  HAHEE
EE(BEBEARE) cERRERS -
mABRE T & & & 1 A] FAME 2 F IR
e

HEAGBZHEEDBBESMHFBHRL
B3t 26 235

HER%

REBEE_T-_=F=HA=+—HIF
- ZEAZTEENHEARRERIR
HELRER - BIEH23% = 100% T
Z . AH=@A(ZZE_mE : T) -

AEEEETERBBYBREEL
F169R(EFTA) [2019 MR F A
MEBEeRE | cEERE - HEN
REEIRIER B RS AERIZE 16
SR —MBTEETHE  WAKRAM
Bk - HBERSREERAEBFE
BEEEREBEEaEZEREAER
RS REERNEETHENKK
FMERT B HREE F 2 £ASRTIE = 8 3K F
R D HERE 2 MR 4 850,000 7%
T(ZE-_mF  F) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential properties
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two
years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currency
of group entity. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 April 2022 i ———
Additions NE

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or RERERZ A

loss

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023
—=F-

Additions NE
Exchange adjustment

loss

At 31 March 2024

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 March 2024 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on the year ended date
by GCA Professional Services Group, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

The change in fair value, being an unrealised gain,
on investment properties amounted to HK$259,000
(2023: HK$65,000) during the year ended 31 March
2024 is included in profit or loss (included in other
gains and losses).

PEE 55, 8 B
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or RIEREZRZ

R-ZZE-_WNF=A=+—H

16. REWHE

AEBNKLEHETALBZREE
W WRAXNEE - BEZ %
HIfR AR SRF -

AREEY EAEE ZBEMAKIMNER
% RARMAHEEHAEREER
BRI EREE  HEAOTES
FHEEERIARATARHEERR
EREBEMRZEEE -

HK$’000
FET
FMA—H —
8,196

N EEZ S
65

R-E-_=F=ZF=+—HK

=M A—H 8,261
28,520
(1,885)

NFEEED
259
35,155
AREBREYWENR T _NF=A

=t —HZAFEDNRE-REARSE
B ERBE 2B A ERERMGERM
REBXREEENFHEAMMETZ
MEMSL -

REZE-_Z-_WNFE=ZA=+—HItF
B BEMEZATEEZH(BARE
W) B259,0008 T(— T - =
F : 65,0008 70) Wt AR B = (5
A bl es K E18) o
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The fair values of certain Group’s investment
properties as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at
the end of the reporting period by an independent
qualified professional valuer, which is not connected
with the Group. The management works closely
with the qualified external valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The management reports the findings to the
board of directors of the Company every half-year to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of
the investment property.

The valuation of Group’s investment properties at
31 March 2024 and 2023 is derived from the basis
of capitalisation of net income with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential but without
allowance for any expenses or taxation which may be
incurred in effecting a sale, and where appropriate,
cross reference by sales comparables.

In estimating the fair values of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Japan are classified as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties as at
31 March 2024 are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REWXE (&)

AEEETREVENR-_FT_OFR
—E_=HF=A=+—HZATED
RE-—REANKEVEBEZBIA
ERBEXRGHEMNEFHRET 2 G
BEmShL - EEEES BRI BHE
BRI E1E - EE ZHERTT R
BXABABE - EEESYFRALAR
AESEERER  MEREMER
FELRKBZIRA -

AEBREMER-_ZS-_MER_-FT
TEE=ZA=t+—HZHEERFKRZE
BRI BEEY BIEFKRAE NED
FEOBE WU EREERREESE
ZEMEBANKEBEELEEG (0
BA)BEAELREEERINEE -

REFTRENR 2 AFER - 25D
EZmRhREREAREERAR

AEEURARZEENE 2 2 FE
BRAATFERBEIR - FAR %
3B B AW ALE -

TREIR_Z_WEFE=A=+—H
BRANAEEXFRENE 2 FE
(LERFER 2 A ERD M A
B) > MEMBRAFEAERREGA
BB BRREEETIEZATE
REZER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REW¥E (&)
Fair value Significant
Description hierarchy Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
i N ERE fE{ERI ERXTABERNARE
Investment properties Level 3 Income approach method (i) Capitalisation rate
located in Japan assuming sale in their
existing states and by (i)  Prevailing market rent
taking into account of per month

17.

NRBARZEENE E3R

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in unlisted

the current market rents
and the reversionary
income potential of the

tenancies.
Wassk - BRERRT () BEAE[=

ETHELEEBAITS
HEMEE 2 EREK S (i) BAFATHSES
B e

17. REEQ T 2R

2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET

RIELEMEBERRZIRE

associates DN 46,157 59,192
Exchange adjustments ME W I B (3,900) 904
Share of post-acquisition profits, E{5UEZEF] - Nk

net of dividends received 2B 22,616 21,456

64,873 81,552
Included in the interests of investments are goodwill % B @%”&E\fﬁ %%Qﬁﬁﬁ%
of HK$19,270,000 (2023: HK$25,842,000) arising on HZEE 19,270,000 8T (ZF ==

acquisition of associates.

F 1 25,842,000/87T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_[WFE=F=+—HIFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s major associates at 31 March

2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation
Name of associates and operation

RS L R

BReENRER LEME

NEERHABERRDA Taiwan
(Th# 1) =)

KETESKRHARAT Taiwan
(Ix)) o

wH f‘zfﬂx MARADF Taiwan

(&%) ﬁé

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 & 17 4%

Proportion of

ownership interest

2024
i L2

45%

45%

45%

B AR QA

fii & A g b

2023
—E-CE

60%

60%

60%

17. RBEE NG 2z (&)

AREBFTEBENFN _ZE_NFER
B =ZA=+—HZHBW
T

Proportion of

voting power held Principal activity

E 2 R EHEL A TEER
2024 2023
= Sl T F
(note) (note)
(Hizt) (Het)
40% 40% Watch trading
BRI
40% 40% Watch trading
BRI
40% 40% Watch trading
RIS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BEZ—E_FE=F=1+—HIFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not

individually material

The Group’s share of profit and
total comprehensive income W858

Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group’s interests in these
associates

AEERZ L
a2 BREARE

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group

entered into the sales and purchase agreement with
the remaining shareholders of the Taiwan Associates
to dispose 15% equity interest at a consideration
of NT$44,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,848,000). As such, the Group’s equity
interest in Taiwan Associates were reduced to 45%
and continues to use the equity method to account
for it as associates, a loss on partial disposal of
associates of HK$7,554,000 was recorded. Since
the remaining shareholders have the right to
appoint three out of five directors to the board of
these associates before and after the disposal, the
directors conclude that the Group does not have
control over these associates.

AEBERIEENMER

17. R E D7 2R (4F)
YHBEAEACHEAT S EHN

NAEZ

2024 2023
—E-UE —ETE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
16,578 13,116
64,873 81,552

o3

CREE-Z-_MWE=A=+—H81t
¢§'$%@Eégﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁT
BRETZEBE WS UWEE15%
fe#E - R(E ;EﬁﬁL\MM 500,000
7T (S R #10,848,000& 7T ) °
At - REBREBBENT 2R
R A E45%  NMEBERBER
EBEEAB S AR - WS
HE I E A Al 18 7,554,000
BT MRS TIREEEN L ER
BETADZ=ZMEBMAZEY
M“TZ%$A At EEEHE

® 0 ANEEYZEHE QRS
ﬂ%o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_T-_NFE=F=+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18.

Cost of investment in an unlisted

joint venture
Exchange adjustments

Share of post-acquisition profit

‘—REEMA
BRERA
BEE 3 R
FE AR W BB 1248 )

ERAEZ

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 March 2024

and 2023 are as follows:

Name of joint venture

RENFER

BREXERAR DA
(“Huimei”) ([ ])

Place of
incorporation

Proportion of
ownership interest

and operation 2024 & 2023

FrE Rzt Bl

“ENER

MR REE L “EC=F

The PRC 40%
1

Note: The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of
Huimei. Huimei is jointly controlled by the Group
and the other significant equity owner by virtue of
contractual arrangements among equity owners.
Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture of

the Group.

Included in the interest of investment is goodwill
of HK$3,704,000 (2023: HK$3,925,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31 March

2012.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

R—EEEQT 2R

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
21,794 21,794
(2,954) (2,628)
2,991 5,264
21,831 24,430
NIRRT _NFER-ZF

REBEE
—=F= H T—HZFEBET :

Proportion of
voting power held
2024 & 2023
BRZRRELS
“BEIMER
—EZ=H

Principal activity

FEXK

40%
(note)
(Htst)

AEEFBEEEZEHARAZ
40% -  EERSRHEHEEAZH
RN Z AT AEEES—
BARREEE A FEEIEG - l%'
EESEAAEEZEEAT

Watch trading
IR AL

Bt

REREZPEEAREEZE T ——F
At BHUEFERAKWBEZME
H 7 EE3,704,0008 (T =
% 1 3,925,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

Information of the joint venture that is not
individually material

18. A—ME&

ENT 2B (F)

YHBRERZEE QR ZEHR

The Group’s share of loss and total 7<% & fE (5 E 18 &
comprehensive expense T HERAX AR

AEERZAZERALZ
R BRE

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture

19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Unlisted investments FELFTRE

Note: The directors of the Company have elected to
designate these investments as at FVTOCI as they
believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in
these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would
not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of
holding these investments for long-term purposes
and realising their performance in the long run.

The amount of the Group’s financial assets at FVTOCI
denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the relevant group’s entities is set out
below:

Swiss Fran (“CHF”)

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(2,273) (225)
21,831 24,430

19. BRAFPEFAREMEZEREZ

AT A
2024 2023
—E-UEF —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
27,835 13,359

B R BB (3w OERE D)

B - ARARREERE  BRZER
ERBERR X FEZE RS
HAKESRERNMBEZEFR
ARBRAERERR Z RN
A BEERZFRERE/EA
FEFAEMEE RS -

AEEZAFHESAREMEEEE
TREEZCHENATXEHERER
ERVEEE NN EEHE -

2024 2023
—R-lEF —BC=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THETT

24,588 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. BAFEFTABZZERMEE

Listed investments EHRE
Equity securities listed in REB LT 2 IRAE S
Hong Kong
Equity securities listed in BN LT 2 IR B S
overseas
Unlisted investments JELTRE
Analysed as: DR
Current portion BIEREE 9
Non-current portion FEBNERER

The amount of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL
denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the relevant group’s entities is set out
below:

United States Dollar (“US$”) EVndE VD)

154 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

2024 2023
—E-E —EF-=

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,915 13,436
1,311 1,228
12,226 14,664
18,695 15,007
30,921 29,671
12,226 14,664
18,695 15,007
30,921 29,671

AEEZAFEAABGEZSREE
ZERATXHEEESREERGE
BB EEEHE

2024 2023
—E-UE —ET_=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET

20,006 16,235
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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21. INVENTORIES

Watches Sk
Accessories and parts Be 14 K &1

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES

BRAFEF AR 2 B

Loan receivables at FVTPL

(notes a and b) ER(KiFakb)
Loan receivable at amortised cost 1Z# 5K ANEtH 2 2 fElL
(note a) ER(Kita)

The following is the maturity profile of the loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period:

/|]]]|]}E
M (8

Repayable after one year
Repayable within one year

oF
W T

21. 78

2024 2023
—E-EF —TE=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
438,663 411,148
4,334 11,054
442,997 422,202

22. EIRE R
2024 2023
—E-UEF —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F BT FET
21,988 61,402
54,260 —
76,248 61,402

AT RN 2RPRERE KD B

ST
2024 2023
—E_MF —E-=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

54,260 20,038

21,988 41,364

76,248 61,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 8 July 2022, the Group entered into a loan facility
agreement (“Facility A”) with an independent third
party (“Borrower A”) with an amount not exceeding
US$5,000,000, to fund the Borrower A’'s obligation
in lending to another party (“Project Borrower A”)
who has beneficial interest in certain properties in
Vietnam and Indonesia (“Properties A”). The loan
to Borrower A carries interest at a fixed rate of
10% per annum and is repayable on 9 June 2023
As at 31 March 2023, Borrower A drew down the
facility in full and the amount was expected to be
repaid within 1 year, and hence it was classified as
current assets. The shareholder of Borrower A has
pledged its shares in Borrower A to the Group as
collateral. This loan receivable was accounted for as
FVTPL as the directors of the Company considered
that the contractual right to cash flow of the loan
receivable did not represent contractual cash flow
that were solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. The loan and accrued
interest were settled in full during the year ended
31 March 2024, in which the principal amount of the
loan and accrued interest with aggregate amount
of approximately US$5,459,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$42,856,000) by means of being
transferred directly to subscribe for cumulative
preferred shares as detailed below and such
arrangement constitutes a non-cash transaction.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited B 5 &R 1T&£ B AR 2 A

22. EWWE R (&)
Bz :

(a)

R-EBE-_—_F+ANH AEEH
—EZBILE=FH(EZRAFRDET
M — 15 % % N8 18 5,000,000 3 7T
ZEZBEHBE(RMER])  AfE
BRAFERFR—AH([EEEZKA
Bl ERUERHNEZETHE
([MER )P HEAERSER) 2
HREES - MERAFRENE
FIZETFEFFERI0%:HE > AR
—E_=FAhLBEER -R=_ZT
—=F=ZA=+—H #BRARE
PHIRRAE  THEHER1FER
BE AhoBAERHEE - X
AFEBHERERAR ZBEKIT
FARAEBEAKER - ZEWRER
BAFEFABRZARE  BAQT
BEERASYWIEMBEIERS R HE
EERASHNMENTBHALBER
ENREREESHNEF - ZER
FERBEEREE T _MFE=
B=Z+—BIEFERLELESE  #w
TXATEF - EFR4EEE4)5,459,000
ETT (HBE R H#) 42,856,000 7T ) B
BRAS MEFFEEEERER
BIRFELER 2L EKIEES

%5
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
entered into a preferred shares subscription
agreement to subscribe the preferred shares of
Borrower A at a consideration of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,950,000) as the
principal, with a cumulative annual dividend at 25%
per annum, to finance the Borrower A’s acquisition
of the equity interests in Project Borrower A. The
consideration is settled by the cash payment of
US$541,000 and the settlement arrangement with the
amount of US$5,459,000 as mentioned above. The
preferred shares would be redeemed at principal plus
the cumulative dividend accrued on principal and are
payable upon the redemption, and the redemption
date should not fall on a date later than 24 months
after the subscription of the preferred shares. The
management expects the repayment of the preferred
shares would be after one year from the reporting
period end and the investment is classified as non-
current assets. The investment is accounted for
at amortised cost as the management considers
the contractual term of the investment give rise on
specified dates to cash flow that is solely payment
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
and it is held within the business model to hold the
investments in order to collect the contractual cash
flow.

The management performs the impairment assessment
based on 12m-ECL for the investment as there is
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. No allowance was recognised in the profit
or loss after considering the financial positions of
Borrower A.

22. EWWEF (&)
Mzt : (48)

(a)

(%)

REBEE-_ZE-_mWE=A=+—H8I1t
FE AEEITVELERRAER
& LA {86,000,000% T(HE
R #746,950,00078 7T ) tE B A £ R
BEFIAFNELER R FER
BATED% UBERIARF
WEBEBEEXRARZEE - RE
LAIR & 1 38 541,000E 7T ) it &
5,459,000 L 2 BB L HE 2 7 K
BE - BEBRUARESMEBARE Z
FEETAX B EITHER - WO S
- BEBASERNELERRER
2418 B - BIEBIBHE LG R
EHR—FREE ZBREHEAL
ERBEE - ZIERBHEAAA
B THREEEBERARENAY
FHRIETHHEEANBRESREE
BINAERABEREZHE -
BiREBEAEF  UWKBRELHR

Ak E
EZInE °

HRZEE B NRERRESRR
WEARIBM BIEEZI12(E A
EHMEREEREZKREELETRE
A o EEEEBRAF NP BAR
% BENEaP R ERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_T-_NFE=F=+—HIFE

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 22 December 2022, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement (“Facility B”) with an independent
third party (“Borrower B”) with an amount not
exceeding US$2,500,000, to fund the Borrower B
in acquiring the freehold land in Thailand through
its wholly-owned subsidiary. The loan to Borrower
B carries interest at fixed rate of 12% per annum
and is repayable after 18 months from the date of
drawdown, with the right to extend the loan period
up to 27 months and Borrower B drew down the
facility in full during the year ended 31 March 2023.
As at 31 March 2024, the amount is expected to
be repaid within 1 year, and hence presented as
current assets. Subsequent to the current financial
year end, the Borrower B has exercised the option to
extend the loan and the amount is still expected to
be repaid within 1 year. The shareholder of Borrower
B has pledged its shares in Borrower B to the Group
as collateral. This loan receivable is accounted for
as FVTPL as the directors of the Company consider
that the contractual right to cash flow of the loan
receivable do not represent contractual cash flow that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding.

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for credit losses

Property rental and other deposits M ¥4 Rk EMizd
Advances to suppliers A FE R = 5K
Others HAh

B 5 R
B EREERE

As at 1 April 2022, trade receivables from contract
with customers, net of allowance for credit losses,
amounted to HK$179,615,000.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

22. EWWE R (&)
Bz (48)

(b) RZE—_—F+=—_A=+=H' ' K

SEE-ZBEYE =
LRI~ 2B

7 (TEFA
i#2,500,000

XnzERBEBZ(REL])
REFRANLBBEZENE AR
BHREKAXELHBERES
[ 18 B A 2 32 45 B B SRR B £ 4 7

KA2% T B

ARNIREXA BEEt 18

EAREE LHERSEFARE

RE27TEA - MEXK

AZBERE

BT -_=F=ZA=+—HIFE
BEHIENER -R-_ZT-MWE=AH
=t+—H ZREEHESM1ER
BE ARINARBHEE AR
VBFEELERE  BRACBITE
ERERMEEE EBEER—F
NEBZEE -ERALZEREREE
BERERALZRERBTFASE
BEAIKIFM - ZEKREFTIEQAF
Bt ABHFAR  AAARESER
BE W I EIER S K H R EER
EWMFENFNENRERENE

EREAAKIER

23. EZ R EMEWRR

2024 2023
—E_E —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
227,114 267,161
(7,872) (4,653)
219,242 262,508
21,869 21,198
5,433 6,772
7,521 4 881
254,065 295,359
R-_E-_—_FMA—H  KEBEFA

M2 B H YRR (B EEEER

%) A 179,615,000 87T °
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BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

23.

24,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not
more than 30 days for its retails sales in department
stores. Sales made to retail customers are mainly
made on a cash basis. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
credit losses based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

Age AR iR

0 to 30 days 0£230H

31 to 60 days 31£60H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days H#im o0 H

As at 31 March 2024, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$82,809,000
(2023: HK$44,648,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$48,877,000 (2023: HK$6,694,000) has been
past due 90 days or more. These balances are
not considered as in default because historical
experience indicated that such receivables could be
recoverable from the relevant debtors. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and
other receivables are stated in note 35.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise demand
deposits and bank deposits held by the Group with
an original maturity of three months or less and cash
balances. The bank deposits carried effective interest
rates ranging from 0.125% to 5.770% (2023: 0.125%
to 3.520%) per annum.

23.

24.

ESREMEBBWERR(Z)
AEEHERERAIZEHEETT
HBBIIVEHZ—REEERXR - TER
FHHETEURGET UTAES
FEUER R (HIBREEBERE) RER

BRI E A2 BRER DT ¢

2024 2023
—E-UE —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
136,433 217,860
14,920 20,246
19,012 17,708
48,877 6,694
219,242 262,508

RZEBE_WNF=A=+—H &x&£E
ZESRYBRREHRBREBRARR
4{H82,809,000B (T - =4 :
44,648,000 7T) < FEUER K » T Z
ZRBEFNEZRBECBE - @8
EEAR 0 48,877,000/ T (T =
F 6,694,000/ 7T ) B @ HI90 H =X,
AE - ZEHBTHERED T
ARBELRERNZSERIEESRT R
MBREERARD - XEBWERZSE
EHRFETAERSR -

5 MEMEWERR Z BE HFS
B MIFESS ©

RekERRESER

RekERBLEBREAEERFAE
REHER UEREBAA=ZME
AU THIRITEARRIR &R -
RITHERIZERFMENF0.125F
E5770B(ZE-=®F :0125E=%
3.520[F)ETE °
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 25 ESREMEMSERERUREN
CONTRACT LIABILITIES =N
Trade and other payables EZ REMENERR
2024 2023
—EB-MF —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables Z S ENERER 34,927 38,184
Payroll and welfare payables e T & KA T 110,957 120,174
Commission payables B A2 53,639 42,330
Renovation work payables JENBIFT TIZERX 6,237 5,610
PRC value added tax and other  fEff 1 B {E i & H th
taxes payables TI1a 24,142 43,886
Property rental fee payables ANEIE K 11,339 13,130
Others HAh 11,891 14,399
253,132 277,713

AT RE SN RN 2HRHIRIRE
ZRHEINZBRE DT

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

2024 2023
—EFE-NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Age AR iR
0 to 60 days 0%260H 32,626 35,5657
61 to 90 days 61290 H 39 —
Over 90 days 90 HM E 2,262 2,627
34,927 38,184

The average credit period on purchases of goods is BEEmTHEERRI0A -

30 days.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities on sales of HEEBEZANAERE

watches

As at 1 April 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$26,817,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, revenue
recognised in current year of HK$20,677,000 (2023:
HK$26,817,000) was included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year.

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of watches, giving rise to contract liabilities
until revenue is recognised and the contract liabilities
decreased during the year ended 31 March 2024 and
2023 are due to less deposits are received for the
obligation to deliver watches to customers.

25. ES R EMENBRRUAREN

REE)

BHEE

2024 2023
—E-mEF TE-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

6,868 20,677

R-ZZE-__FOH—H:  aH8EAE
26,817,000 T °

 E-_E _NF=ZA=Z+—HL®F
g - 5A$$Fﬁ§p ) 2 Y25 20,677,000
BIL(ZZE =% :26,817,000/87T)
BETAREYIZ AN ARBRESGS -

BHREREEER AR
FEA%’jﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁn s 3 1k ﬁﬁ
BHREBERBE T _NER_
__$ A=1— EIJtﬁEM'J\'M
AREREPRXNEERNEE -

Wiz md
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Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than one
year but not more than two

years

Within a period of more than two
years but not more than five

years

Less: Amount due for settlement
with 12 months shown
under current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12 FEREBARZE TR 121@A
months shown under non-current

liabilities

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

ERNEERE :

—FR

BB —FETEBEME

Z HREA

BEAMFETBEASF

Z HREA

K RBBETHR12{E
AREHREEZ

IR

®RAEE 2 IR

EETIAE B
EETIAB &

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES

26. HESE

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
132,560 121,724
67,501 113,966
66,364 116,431
266,425 352,121
(132,560) (121,724)
133,865 230,397

. IEFERLIE

MEIGEAMBIRRME - B TR
EHRAEERBED TEE - ATH
FRVERA 75 BR 3R < BT R TR BR AT

2024 2023
—E-UE —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
6,864 4,503
(28,693) (26,162)
(21,829) (21,659)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 27. EEBLE (F)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) INTARRNFERNTFERRZE
assets recognised and movements thereon during DREHE(BR) EERHES :

the current and prior years:

ECL  Distributable

provision profitsof  Distributable
oftrade  associates and profitsof  Right-of-use Lease
receivable  ajointventure  subsidiaries assets liabilities Others Total

RARMER  BEDWR
LRBEE -BeENE WEAAY
ERRE  cO70RH  WOREA  RARRE ELED Rt aif
HKS 000 HKS 000 RS 000 FKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 8000
41 41T AT TAT 741 41 41T

(note)
W)
A1 Aprl 2022 A a1 105 (4647) (25.7%) - - 3543 (26,129
Adjustment (note) gz - - - 8316 (8,316) - -
A1 Apri 2022 (restated) RZF-ZFMA—H
(lm&5) 105 (4,647) (25,726) 8,316 (8.316) 3,543 (26,125)
Exchange adjustment & 7 35 % (60) - - (610) 610 - (60)
Reversal of withholding B2 (4 FE501%
fax payment - 2,054 20,179 - - - 23333
Credit (charge) to profit - FMBEEF A (0B )
or loss 521 (2,784) (16,338) 467 (467) (206) (18.807)
At 31 March 2023 Ay
=+-H 1,166 (4877) (21,289) 8,173 (8.173) 3,331 (21659)
Bxchange adjusiment~ [E % 33 (83) - - (569) 569 (11) (%4)
Reversal of withholding B 2 (4 TB #0184
fax payment - 2337 16,017 - - - 17,354
Credit (charge) to profit  FMBZEA (18
or loss 890 (3,799 (16,069) 10,055 (10,085) 1548 (17430)
At 31 March 2024 WZEZWE=A
=f+-A8 1973 (6,339) (22.331) 17,659 (17.659) 4874 (21829)
Note: The amounts as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March Wit  RZEZWF=A=F+—HBE=F
2023 mainly represent deductible temporary TE=F=ZA=T—HZzeBEXERE
differences arising from property, plant and ME - WREBBELE UMY

equipment. BFAE%E o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

27.

28.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 March 2024, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of HK$609,094,000 (2023: HK$472,967,000)
available to set off against future assessable profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these unutilised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit stream. The tax losses
of the Group at 31 March 2024 and 2023 may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax with tax rate of
5% or 10% is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 March 2024,
deferred tax liabilities of HK$22,337,000 (20283:
HK$21,285,000) has been provided for in full in
respect of the temporary difference arising from the
undistributed profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards as the directors of the
Company considered that these subsidiaries will
continue to distribute dividend in the foreseeable
future.

SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R EE0.10/8T.2
B
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 N_ZT—-—FpH—
and 31 March 2024 H - —Z2=-_=%=A
=+—BRk=ZFT_MF
=A=+—H
Issued and fully paid: BERTERHR :
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 RIZTEZZFWMHA—

and 31 March 2024

=A=+—H

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X{T& B AR 2 A

27. EEBE (E)

R-ZZE-_WME=A=+—H £5HE
B R B) AR E 18 609,094,000 7 7T
— T =1 :472,967,000/&C) A T
IR E R R R FEF - AR KEETR
BIARHEFIOR - A ERZEZ AT
ARBEERERAEEREEE - ~5%
BN —_E_NER_ZT_=F=A
=+ HZBEEEERBLEE o

BEBECEMBRE BZZEZNF
—A—HBE HAENBARMEIR
BT REUG 7 2 IR B B8 5% 5%
10% 2B - RZ_ZTE_WF= A
=+—8 BRARQ T%$m%¢l
B AR EERN R REE D
%’ma%agwgﬂmg:ggﬂ
F—A—HRRINZAXDIKGF AT
EEZERNZEZB2ETIRELCHRE
B81&22,337,000 8 T(Z =4 :
21,285,000/ 7T) °

H-—Z2-=F=A8
=t—HERZ-ZZ_mNF

28. R
Number
of shares Amount
REEE &5
HK$'000
FET
1,000,000,000 100,000
487,358,224 48,736
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE
29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 29. LR AEBRZARKS

(a) 2013 Share Option Scheme (a) —E—=FREREE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13 August 2013, a new share option scheme was
adopted with effect on 3 November 2013 (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
might be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company held an equity interest or
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or
(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects included any director, employee or
consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an
Affiliate; or (iv) any customer, supplier or adviser
whose service to the Group or business with the
Group contributed or was expected to contribute
to the business or operation of the Group. The
purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme
was to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. The total number of shares available for
issue under the 2013 Share Option Scheme as
at 2 November 2023, the expiry date of such
scheme, was 57,061,022 shares representing
about 11.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company on such date. No eligible persons
should be granted an option in any 12-month
period for such number of shares (issued and
to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue
on the last day of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company
had been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The exercisable period was
determined by the directors of the Company,
which should not be more than ten years from
the date of grant, and might include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before
it could be exercised. The exercise price per
share payable on the exercise of an option equal
to the highest of:

BERARAAR=ZZT—=FNA
TZARTZRRBEFAE LA
B ERRER  R_TT=F
BREsTEEmE  —HR %
—=F+—A=RERZHER
B E ([ - —=FBRE
2 ) B -

BiE T —=FHERESTS
BRENRETOHAEE AR
RIFERAE LR 2 AR ZA A
ZHMBAR(BMEBAR] 2F
MEE - EEXEM: H(i)X
mABREAEERBB AR 2E
AEE - EEHEBZEA2#E
Z5t (i AEBEXBEL
RIZEMES BEXEMER
WA Z AR B (iv) BARERE
RE B 2 S ARG M £ sk TR HR ¥
REBZEBIKLEEHERZ
FRRF - HEFKER - —F
—=FEREE B EWRS &%
BEFAA REMAL - LUBE
BEHAREE 2 EBREEED
BRl- AT _=F+—H=
H(Zstglze@mBsE) —F
— = FEREFTEAE N A HET
2 W 1n 28 A57,061,0220%
HERZBEARRR B ETRALD
11.7% o HRIBE LA - BRIEE
S A R BIIREREIAE - BRIRE
fa+—{EAEHA - BEKRAL
TEREETHERRMNDEE (B
TR TET) A XBBAAQT
Rzt —@EAHMKRE—BZE
BITIRAR 1% 2 B AE - 171 Hf
JTIBRANRIESETE - ETNSH
BERLEBRFTE - B8
REREETENVERBELR
FEHABR - TR IBREREN 2
ERITEERENUAT=ZEFRZ

REE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E_WFE=A=+—HIFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(a) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(a) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as
quoted in the Stock Exchange’s daily
qguotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2023.

No option was granted, exercised, lapsed or
forfeited under the 2013 Share Option Scheme
since its effective date on 3 November 2013 and
there was no outstanding share option as at 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

29. LR AER RS (&)

(a)

—ER-CERRETE(E)
(a) —HRBRMHEE

(b) B RELE BB
BRARERABERK
mE: &

(c) BROHREERLEHANR
EEEBEBIS AR
BRAHRZEBERFEH KT

(=

—E-=FRREH RN =T
—=Ft—AZHAEM

B ——FERETEERE
H-_FT—=F+—H=HAKL " #§
EEREERD 176« K&
LR MR ZZE-_MF =
A=+—BRk=-ZZF=-_=F=A
=+ —HIERITHEBRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

29. LR RERNRRS (&)

(b) 2022 Share Award Scheme (b) —E-_FERMERE

On 27 June 2022 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted the employees’ share award
scheme (the “2022 Share Award Scheme”).
Pursuant to the 2022 Share Award Scheme, it
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing from the Adoption Date. Under
the 2022 Share Award Scheme, any employee,
executive, officer, or directors of the Company
or of any subsidiary are eligible for participation
in the scheme. The purposes and objectives of
the 2022 Share Award Scheme are to recognise
and motivate the contributions by certain eligible
persons and to provide them with incentives in
order to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group and to help
the Group in attracting and recruiting suitable
personnel as additional employees to further
the operation and development of the Group,
and to provide the eligible persons with a direct
economic interest in attaining the long-term
business objectives of the Group. The board of
directors shall not make any further award which
will result in: (i) the number of shares awarded
by the board under the scheme exceeding 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date; or (ii) the number of the
shares held by public shareholders falls below
the minimum percentage as prescribed under
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to each selected
person under the scheme shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the Adoption Date.

For further details of the principal terms of the
2022 Share Award Scheme, please refer to the
Company’s announcement on 27 June 2022. No
share award was granted under the 2022 Share
Award Scheme since the Adoption Date.

RZZBEZZFNAZF+EBUE
MBHE])  AAFIEHEMEESR
NEEHE([ZE - —FRH
REETE ) c BE_T—_—FK
M iZENET 8] - ZATEI B A
REAB/R O RER - HR A10
F o BT~ —FRMHEEE
g ARBFEMHB AT 2E
fifEE - ITTAE @RABHK
EEHEERLEEZE - = F
T FRHEEFEI B ETR
ERRETAEEBETAEKRAL
FIfEZ B/ - BIEFRERE
DHBERS  BESHFAEEN
we B R DA N E B AN & B 0K S
NMBESBALTERTEE - N
E—ITHHIAEELERERE -
WHREBBRASBEREFEK B IRE
MeEBERATREEEZELER
HmoBFEGTFE—HIEHE
B AR (N ESSREBZTE
RE) 2R MDE B BBARA RN
MBEE EITRA Z210% : 3K
(VAR EFEZRMDEE K
REMRABEZREBDL -
BRETATREBZTEI N ER
ZERERHEBE TESBBAARAF
REMBEIE BITIRAZ 1% ©

BT —FRHEEFEE
ZIER2E—FFE - BREAR
RAR=E-_—_FA=-++H
s BERDRBERMB
HRRIRIE — 5 — — F AR () 18 E st
EIERW -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

29.

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(b) 2022 Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The total number of awards available for grant
under the 2022 Share Award Scheme was
48,735,822 shares as at 1 April 2023, 31 March
2024 and the date of this report respectively.
Under such scheme, there is no provision on
(a) the vesting period of awards to be granted;
and (b) the amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period within
which payments or calls must or may be made
or loans for such purposes must be repaid. All
these are subject to the discretion of the board
of directors of the Company on the granting of
an award under such scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 20283,
no share-based payment expense was recognised
in relation to share option scheme and share award
scheme mentioned above.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group and the other
shareholders of the associates of the Company
issued financial guarantees jointly and severally
to certain banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to associates. The aggregate amounts that
could be required to be paid is NT$150,000,000 and
equivalent to HK$37,590,000 (2023: NT$150,000,000
and equivalent to HK$39,060,000) if the guarantees
were called upon in entirety, of which full amount of
the relevant banking facilities has been utilised by
these associates. The Group considers the fair value
of the contract is nil at initial recognition and the
loss allowance as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are
insignificant. Details of the credit risk assessment of
the financial guarantee contracts are set out in note
35.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R 5 X{T& B AR 2 A

29.

30.

DRGOBRER NS (&)

(b) —B-_FRORBE(F)

RZTFE_=FMWA—H =&
“WFE=ZA=+t—BRARE
BE» — - —FRHEBETE
H TR HERT 2 BB 5
75 48,735,822f% BX 19 o 1B & 7%
FE BEAE @B TEEZ
BB &(b)RFEENER
B 2 FEAT & B8 A M WA 7B B) AT B2
IR RS ER BRI N BEE
ARZEENZER - FTBEZSE
EHARARAEZSEESNE
RERBZET B T REN S E1E

=

BE_ZE_NEER_ZE_=F=A#
=+—HLFEAR  BER ERER
T B MR (0 BB FT B R AR D &
EWM 2 5EAE -

BHEREHN

RZEBE_NF=A=+—H &x&EH
YN N/NIET iR /N D= L =W
ENRERZIBRITRE LR & ER
MAETHRITEDIHEER - WEE
KE2HREZZER AIATEAET
S5 2 4858 B F A 150,000,000 7T
(}%5 37,590,0008 L) (ZE ==
% ¥ A% 150,000,0007T ¢ AHER
39,060,000 7T) * HHEARITRED
BZEHERN728HH - AEER
RBEXNZ AFERVTERFEARES -
BR-ZZFE-_mER—_ZTE-_=ZF=H
ST -HAZEBEERGBNCIRE - B
BERELHZEERRFHFBIHRL
BEE35 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect
of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in
the consolidated financial
statements

B3

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. Under the scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the
other is a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF” Scheme) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the Group
at rates ranging from 5% to 15% of the employee’s
basic salary, depending on the length of service with
the Group.

BRI AVERRERS B
Bk AR 2 KB
X BEMREZER

31.

32.

BAREE
2024 2023
—E_NE —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
3,045 2,215

RIRERETE
EEHFRAKTE

AEEXTERMBEAERER (B
BF)E W EREHIENRGE - BRI
ZitE BEXxREEBHAKREES
AR ARS% Mt EIfER - &
HEBWA LR &30,000%8 T ° 7%
ZE 2 EERNT B RTEAES 2
EeHE  BEAKREZEESFA -

BRFT B A e AN R B I ET 8RR All4E
EZLLRENTES 2 HHR -

REE  ARE2EFERHERTE
H o — I8 SR IR B SR R KET S 661
M (TORSOJ #H &) ME—]A
RZZBZZF+ZARBARGIM RS
Tt EHRPIR 2 R RTE 2T S
(MgEe ] 58 - ZFAEZ2EER
RBUSFAAENZESHA - BR
SEZEENH -

ORSOGTEINEERAEBIEL 2 &
AHEFREES  HALXAEER
RF4E75%ZE15% @ WERKER
2 RIS FEEE -
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BE—ET-—_WE=F=+—HILFE

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 32. RBERGE (&)

(Continued)

Defined contribution retirement scheme
(Continued)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a monthly cap of
HK$1,500.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$5,728,000 (2023: HK$5,400,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans in respect
of the current accounting period. For the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeitures
arising from employees leaving the Group prior to
completion of qualifying service period.

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the retirement plans and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable in the future years.
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 3. EEEMELE ZEBZHE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s Ti%ﬁ I ANEEREREMEL A
liabilities arising from financing activities, including BE2e RN MIFREH - 7
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BEIMELAZABRAHEENEEK
from financing activities are those for which cash IARKECREFENAEB 2FE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in REREXRTHIERMEETHEEL
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as WEME °
cash flows from financing activities.
Lease Interest Bank Dividend
liabilities payable loans payable Total
HERE EARE BITER ERRE @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT AT THT
t 1 April 2022 WZBZ_f
mA—A 441 410 — 28,708 13,214 483,332
Financing cash flows (note) BEREEE
(H) (138,805) (102) (28,708) (363,137) (530,752)
Dividends declared EERRE = = = 349,923 349,923
Interest accrued A 14,510 102 — — 14,612
New leases entered or modified BV E®Z
g 39,606 — - - 39,606
Termination of leases BELL (1,639) - - - (1,639)
Exchange adjustment i 5 R (2,961) - — — (2,961)
At 31 March 2023 WZEZ=%
=A=t-H 352,121 - - - 352,121
Financing cash flows (note) BERERE
(W) (140,791) - - (282,668) (423,459)
Dividends declared EERRE - - - 282,668 282,668
Interest accrued fEE 718 13,663 — - - 13,663
New leases entered or modified B[V EHZ
ki 50,785 - - - 50,785
Termination of leases BELLE (6,819) - - - (6,819)
Exchange adjustment 5 AR (2,534) - - - (2,534)
At 31 March 2024 N_E-NE
ZA=t-H 266,425 — — — 266,425

Note: The cash flows represent dividends paid, repayment
of bank loans, repayments of lease liabilities and
interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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34.

35.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes lease liabilities in note 26, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as issue of
new debts or redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

34.

35.

Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised REHEKATTEZ
cost TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVESABRZ
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFAEMEE
Wz RART A
Loan receivables at FVTPL BAFEFTAEBRZZ
& E K
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost B S AR
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SRTEER
2024 2023
—E-NE —Eo=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
1,223,469 1,391,366
30,921 29,671
27,835 13,359
21,988 61,402
117,863 114,323
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, loan receivables, trade and other
receivables, refundable rental deposits, bank
balances, and trade and other payables, and
financial guarantees contracts and lease liabilities.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit
risk and impairment assessment, and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
either US$, CHF, HK$ and Renminbi.

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities except
exposed to foreign currency risk in relation to US$
arising from financial assets at FVTPL and loan
receivables, and CHF arising from financial assets at
FVTOCI.

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the reporting date is

as follows:
US$ ETT
CHF I A RB

35. €T H(£&)
MERREERERIE

AEECZFESRITABRERATE
AAABSZEREE - WAFERA
HemiacRkATRE BESE
R B REMEBEIRR - AREHE
ERe  RITEHK B NEMEN
BRRALTBREREOMEERE -
ZEEBMTAZHFBREB M ER
Be-HZEeRIARBCRRERE
misE R (B E R - A= E R M E
b ERER) - E5 Rk M EF G
AEREE KR o T XH ] fE
EzSRRIER - -BEBEERE
R TR - ARECR K B M A Rt iR
BUBE Zfaht o

5 E B
B

REBABIRHUNET WLk
B BTTRARERE -

HRAREBOHEAEREEER 2T
EEEEREN  BMAKEHEHEEZ
SMERBRABR - HEEZEQFER AR
BZEMEENNMEBREREL X
T U RIRAFER AR M EE K E
ZEREEEL ZHmIIRRS -

REFRBEH  TRINEHEZERE
EZFREENT :

2024 2023
—B-lmF —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
96,254 77,637
24,588 —
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between
HK$ and US$ will be immaterial as US$ denominated
monetary assets are held by group entities having
HK$ as their functional currency, and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the management
conducts periodical review of exposure and
requirements of various currencies, and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. No sensitivity analysis
was prepared since the directors of the Company
consider the amount involved is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities (details of which are set out
in note 26). The management monitors interest rate
exposure when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances (details of which
are set out in note 24). The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise. The fair value interest rate risk
on bank deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits
are short-term.

No sensitive analysis is performed as the exposures
to fair value and cash flow interest rates risks for
these items are considered as insignificant.

N
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. ST A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL, equity
instruments at FVTOCI and loan receivables at FVTPL
at the end of the reporting period exposed the Group
to other price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk in relation to the
financial assets at FVTPL at the reporting date. For
sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate of
10% is applied in current year.

If the prices of the respective securities has been
10% (2023: 10%) higher/lower:

o post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$2,890,000 (2023: increase/
decrease by HK$2,967,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL; and

For loan receivables at FVTPL, no sensitive analysis
is performed as the exposure is considered as
insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent equity
price risk facing by the Group as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

BEREEEREREE(Z)

mEmER ()
E 11818 /7 B

AEERERBPR LA FEFAR
BZEBMEE  RAFEFARMLE
EW sz RARTARRAFE AR
BZREERSAEEmH L MER
R\ -

BRE DT

TXERES TR 2H B PR QT
Bt A& S RVE E R Z ERE
RETE - WBRESNME - NFE
ERSRENEF10% -

HEBEH 2B LA/ TRE10% (=
T_=4F:10%) 8l :

o HARAFEFABHZEMEE
ZAFEES EHFARHK
1% 4 A1 #5318 0“5 4> 2,890,000
BIL(ZZE=F - N m
2,967,000/87T) : &

RN FEFABRGE ZEEERM
5 BERRERERSTA ML EE
TTHURE DA ©

REREER  ARFREY 2R
BRI NRRNFERAEZ AR - EX
ZHRES AU NRAE B FE S
Z BB BRAERRER
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, loan receivables, bank balances,
refundable rental and other deposits, other
receivables and financial guarantee contracts. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts as disclosed in note 30, except that the
credit risks associated with loan receivables is
mitigated because of the collateral provided to the
Group.

Except for loan receivables at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information
about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, as applicable, are summarised as
below.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. ST A (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024

BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating Description

AR EEFR i

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due
amounts

EER HFAZENRBRIER Y& EMEH
IR

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settles in full

BELE EBARERFNBMARERTE  BRT
THEE

Doubtful There have been significant increases

in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources

i AEHINBER KRG ESEREE
Elb B Ve HER LA RBZEE N

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BB ARBEAEREECEAGENE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the

debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

! BRBEREBARARERBRNER
AEEIRRBEAKEEBRIE

35. €T H(£&)

BEREEEREREE(Z)

EEERRERETE (E)

AEBABEERRERFEERET
SIIFE R -

Other financial

Trade receivables assets/other items
HitteMEE

B2 RWERR HtEH

Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL

not credit-impaired

REDHEBEEFE — 12ERARHEEERR

FIEERE
Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
FENEHEEERE — 12@AEBMEEER
FEERE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

FEREHEERE — HFEURNEESE —

FEERE FEERE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
FEHEHEERE — GENEREEERE —
EERE EERE
Amount is written off Amount is written off
WHEESE WHEHEST
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposure of

the Group’s financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts, which are subject to ECL assessment:

External credit rating

HIEEFER
2024 2023
13 S
Notes
Wit

Financial assets at BBERTTEL

amortised cost SHEE

Bank balances BiTis 2 B2 — Aat B2 — Aat
(Note d) (H#a)

Refundable rentaland ~ ATEERE KA 2 N/A NJA
other deposits and U REfEY TER MR
other receivales B

Trade receivables ZHERES 23 N/A N/A

TEA NEE

Loan receivables ERER 2 N/A N/A

TER MR

Other item EtER

Financial quarantee HHERAY 30 N/A NJA
contracts TER TR

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

35. €I E(Z)
BEEREEEERKE (&)

EE/mEE R BEE ()

TRAVNARBZ 2 BMEERWBE
RENEHZEERR  EXRNE
HEE BB

Internal 12m or Gross carrying amount
credit rating lifetime ECL
ABESIR 12BA9%EN AkmE
RAGERS

2024 2023
k1 : 3 St
HK$:000 HK$1000
FET FEr

N/A 12m ECL 894,075 1,075,193
iR (not credit-
impaired)
12A%E
EEER
(FEERRE)

(Note a) 12m ECL 55,802 53,666
(Wia) (not credit-
impaired)
12EAEE
LSRR
(FEERE)

(Note b) Lifetime ECL 27114 267,161
(Wiib) (not credit-
impaired)
FaEEY
FEEE
(FERHE)

(Note ¢) Lifetime ECL 54,260 _
(Hiie) (not credit-
impaired)
RESRY
BB
(FEERE)

(Note ¢) 12m ECL 37590 39,060
(Wite) 1208785
FERR
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In determining the ECL for refundable rental and other
deposits, and other receivables, the management
of the Group makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The directors of
the Company has considered the consistently low
historical default rate in connection with other general
payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s remaining balance of other receivables is
insignificant.

The sales of the Group are mainly on cash-basis
and the trade receivables of the Group mainly
represents those retail sales in department stores
in which those are reputable department stores in
the PRC. The Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential counterparty’s credit
quality and defines credit limits individually. Limits
and scoring attributed to the department stores are
reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 38%
(2023: 41%) and 69% (2023: 67%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest trade
receivable and the five largest trade receivables
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade receivables
individually and based on the internal credit risk
grading assessment, those trade receivables with
past due balances are grouped under watch list. The
management is of the opinion that there has no default
occurred for trade receivables past due 90 days
or more and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable due to long term/on-going relationship
and good repayment record from these customers.

35. €T H(£&)
BERBREEREREE(Z)

= Em R R B E S (4

Wiz -

(a)

REEANERDNEEREMZS AR
H Y AR R 2 TRERE B B 18RS
AREEEEEREBEENER R
AITRE 1 BB (i 538 78 ) 39 LA JE UK AR
FR 2 AT Y a1 1 i E R B R A
ARAERCERBRALNKEH
ZEBEEOER  IBHERSA
SEEMBUEERGBEZERTEE
BRIt NEK o

REBZHETBURES HER -
MAKRB B SHBKERERRRE
TATEMEEERARIZAERT
MEEHE AEBERANEE
ADEBANBEEEF T Z2EE
BxkENREEERE -HTA
ERAEIZEELREFDEFER
MR o BB B i B 5212 fr Al i
REBURETH R DA MER - 5t
BHmE  AAREERRAEEZ
EERRERERE

BRI (ZE_=F:41%) &
69%( —_E - =ZF:67%) 28 5
R BE S RIREANEBEZK
B REWERNATRAAXE 5 EWER
o BHAEBEEEEERKRSETF
ZER - B EERBRERERIE -
TEBEEEEZR—SZEK &
EECEEEEREESL -

gEoh - REEZREREEEHERA
HH 5 RN RKER MIZNEEE
VB2 A Bl R A ETT R E RS - =
BAMBENE S RUERKAIEA
BRELE BEERS  BARHEZ
SEFREB/HERRERERT
ZEFFCH MO RKIALEZE
HEVERRIL BELELN - BT
RN R A A 28R E -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited ® 757 X175

(Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated by reference to
the external credit rating and internal information, and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by the management of
the Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

35. ST E (&)
BERREEEERBE(Z)

EE/mEE R BEE ()

Wit -

(b)

(%)
(%)

A BERETI2EINBEEFTER

AEER T - YRBBANHLBES
PR AN %5 71 R 15 2 B BE 1 B RHE
AR REBEREERARAE
AR 2B HIOR 2 2/ kTR
A5 TE

The following table shows the movement of loss T%%%Q/TEEEEZJE%JEWEE )
allowances that has been recognised for trade BREE
receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
FEBRES
EEEE
(EEERE)
HK$'000
TFET
As at 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_—_FMW™A—H 2,821
Changes due to financial instruments AemTER-_ZT——
recognised as at 1 April 2022: MA—BEZmMEH :
— Impairment losses reversed during the — — EWH@EHE%’E@
year (2,821)
New financial assets originated EEENESRMEE 4,655
Exchange adjustment (R (2)
As at 31 March 2023 R-B_=F=A=+—H 4,653
Changes due to financial instruments .imﬁ‘liﬂﬁ/\fzﬁi_i
recognised as at 1 April 2023: M A—H#R :
— Impairment losses reversed during the — — EW/)MEJE?TEEEE@
year (4,439)
New financial assets originated BEEAHERMEE 7,998
Exchange adjustment P W (340)
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-_WNF=A=+—H 7,872
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there WEERBNEBARREENH
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe N2 B I ERR I E A] e (RN EHA
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect EENERAWERF) - BIAEE

of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings.

A RA
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount that
the Group has guaranteed under the respective
contracts and was approximately HK$37,590,000
(2023: HK$39,060,000) as at 31 March 2024. At
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have performed impairment assessment by
considering the financial positions and performance
of the relevant associates, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of the financial guarantee
contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group is measured
at an amount equal to 12m ECL. The management of
the Group considers the probability of default is low
and accordingly, loss allowance was considered as
insignificant.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on bank
balances. The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has reviewed the recoverable amount of the loan
receivables at amortised cost regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment is made for irrecoverable
amounts. The management assesses the ECL under
12m-ECL model as there is no significant increase
in credit risk since the initial recognition. The
management estimates the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables based on the financial position of the
counterparty.

35. €T H(£&)
BERBREEREREE(Z)

EEmBRRERETE ()

Hiit - (&)

(c)

MY BEREAMS - BEAERE
AERBR-_ZE-_MWME=A=+—8”
BESAOMERZESSEY
437,590,000 t( T = =4 :
39,060,000 L) - MEFRE K -
AABEZCEREERABEHER
Bl Z B SR R R R IR E 1T R E T
H REVEERANVZEERR
B ) 56 7 7R A SR I 4 K g 48 A0 o
I REEBRHZFBERAENOZ
EiERERASEN12@AEREE
EEIE AEEETEEBREEY
WERER  EEEEEHEREAER
TRHE -

AEBAEERTEREHZEER
BEFBR  HRRHHFHRE
BRESFFRBEFITREESE
EFXRZRT - ROTHEBRZEER
BHR -

REEERRAERE BERER
EHREHR B ANt B 2 B E
RZ AW E &5 - ARRYE TR
ClEBIEHRHRE - AN EER
i 8 )46 T 8 DA SR I S8 R & S 00
B ER12E A BHEEEERE
AHETREEEEE  c EEERR S
HFHTNHBERRGEREER 2
fBETEBRE -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_NF=F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. $@MT AR (Z)

B EREREBBRRBEK(EF)

MEBEL/EE

REERBESERE  AEESE
RREBEEEBGERHNIRE RS
FIREEE KT  URARNEELER
HESLBERERENBZTE

TRALAEE SR A ERHEER
HIZBTAHOHR - TRIVIKBAE
Er e AN R ZZREERAZARMRE
REERSRERN HMESBAR
ZAHBEDRBEERAEE - TX
BREMNERACHERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €T R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MKBEREEREREE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HBELER (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB 2 R E B 5l 7%
Over Over
Weighted 1 year 2 years
average On demand but not but not Total
effective or less than more than more than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEFH RERY, 1550 280 E AERRE
BRAZ SME B2&ER B5ER REAR REE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT TAT AT TET AT
2024 ZBIQE

Financial liabilites ~ $BEE
Trade and other ZHREMEMRR N/A

payables NEA 117,863 — — 117,863 117,863
Lease liabilities HEBE 4.69% 140,849 73,984 68,574 283,407 266,425
Financial guarantee BT ERAH N/A

contracts TER 37,590 — — 37,590 —
2023 “B-CE

Financial liabilities ~ $EARE
Trade and other B REMEMER N/A

payables TER 114,323 — — 114,323 114,323
Lease liabilities fEaE 3.35% 134,678 121,308 120,320 376,306 352,121
Financial guarantee  BIHERAL N/A

contracts TNERA 39,060 - — 39,060 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_NF=F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparties to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparties
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparties which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—_ET - WE=F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets ad
financial liabilities are determined.

Financial assets Fair value
tHEE NYE
2023
—Z-=F
HK$'000
FET
(i) Equity instruments at FVTOCI 1,589 5,549
— unlisted investments
?%%EﬁAﬁm%EW #we
— ¥ ETRE
26,246 7,810
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL 12,226 14,664
— listed investments, equity
securities listed in Hong Kong
and overseas
BRATES ABRZEREAE
— FRE  REBREMNE
2 RAES
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL — 18,695 15,007
unlisted investments
BRATESABRZEREAE
— REMRE
(iv)  Loans receivables at FVTPL 21,988 61,402

BRVEF ARG RRET

35. €T H(£&)

BEREEEREREE(Z)

mEBESEE ()

W HAEF R EULFEFEZAN
EEBEERTHBREE L FE

AEBEETEREERERAEERE
WEBRZAFENE - TREIER
mﬂ#myﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁz
NEE -

Fair value
hierarch
ATER

Level 2

F2

Level 3

F3R

Level 1
E15

Level 2

%28

Level 2

F2i

Valuation techniques and key inputs
RERNRIERAUE

Quoted market prices provided by brokers
which are financial institutions (note

FRELZ SRBBRILZMERE (W)

Fair value derived by management
estimation with reference to price to sales/
price to earnings before interest and tax,
depreciation, amortisation ratio of the
industry

a@Fﬂ%ﬂi HE/BRIEBTNE &
HAFE +Lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁm/¥@

Quoted bid prices in an active market
EETEMRZEAR

Quoted market prices provided by brokers
which are financial institutions (note)

FRELZ SRBBRIEZMERE (N

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow is
estimated based on the contract interest
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of counter parz

HEBERE c AXBELHENRE
BRREMGH - TRRBRAF I EERR
ML ERBEREL -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Note: Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are
financial institutions represent the fair values of the
respective funds, based on the observable quoted
prices of the underlying investments in an active
market.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

The financial assets subsequently measured at fair
value on Level 3 fair value measurement represent
equity instruments at FVTOCI. During the year ended
31 March 2024 and 2023, there is a purchase of
equity instruments at FVTOCI of HK$22,126,000
(2023: Nil), disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI
of HK$3,085,000 (2023: Nil) and loss on fair value
of HK$4,565,000 (2023: HK$77,000) has been
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. ST A (&)

B EREREBBRRBEK(EF)

mEBEZEE ()

IR MR EL N FEEZ K
EEzHBEERTHBREEZ L FE
(%)

Wiz - (E Rz S BEEBRH 2 Hi5 R
BESESZATE  HERER
RETERMGH 2 TBREEE -

RRBEERR  WEEEPBRKRT
HBERARECEREEREREA
B2 REEEQFERE

EIMDFETEHR

EREFEIRAFEFEFERAFE
HEZEMEEAKRAFETAR
HEERFZBRATIAE - HE_-Z
CER-E-=F=A=+—H1F
FE AEEBERAFETSAH
o2 mE U w2 % R T A 22,126,000
BIL(ZE-_=ZF: &) LEEAQ
FEFAEMEZEREZRATA
3,085,000 (T =_=F : £&) -
BEREMEZEKEPHERATFE
E5 184,565,000 (T = = F :
77,000/87C) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE
36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all
of which are limited liability companies, at 31 March

36. TEMBEAF

RZZE_WMFER_ZT_=ZF=AH
=+—HB ' ARARETENERA (5

2024 and 2023 are as follows: REBERRAG) Z&F#EMT :
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
2L/
WEARER 2R/ 84S BRARARRA/ERREHEA ADAFBERARARE/ RREA LA ITEK
Directly Indirectly
% i3
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
b Sa1[:3 - S 2 it S 13 e St it 13 S 2
3 % 3 %
La Suisse Watch Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
Limited HK$1,000 HK$1,000
BIRTARLA 3] EER1,000%7 ERR1,00057T BREH
Oriental Watch (China) Company  Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Watch trading and
Limited HK$1,000 HK$1,000 investment holding
A& (RE) ERAT B EBR1,000%7 LBl 1,000% EREHRRERR
Oriental Watch Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Watch trading
HK$2,000 HK$2,000
RARABRAA B EER2,000%7 LiBR2,000%T R
Oriental Watch (Macau) Company ~ Macau Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 50 50 50 50 Watch trading
Limited MOP$25,000 MOP$25,000
P& (RM) BRAT sl EBR250008M  LARR25,0002M7 BEAH
Cathay Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - —  Watch trading
HK$2,000 HK$2,000
ARRTERAA BE EBR2,000%% LBl 000% ERAH
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share - — 100 100 Investment holding
HK$1 HKS1
ERBRAA 20 EER1ER LER1 BT RERR
Unex Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property holding
HKS$2 HKS2
FURRARAR Eh EER2ER LRoAT wENE
Eastfair Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share 100 100 - — Securities investment
HK$1 HK$1
RHERLA FE EBR1%R LER1ET FRRE
Fully Field Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - —  Property holding
HKS8 HKS8
REERERAA 20 EER8ET LiReET KENE
LEEREMERESERDA  The PRC (note) Registered and Registered and - — 100 100 Watch trading
(Shanghai Oriental Watch paid-up capital paid-up capital
International Trading Co., Ltd.) US$200,000 US$200,000
FEEREAERESERAA  HEKH) EMREHER AMREEER ERAH
200,000% 7 200,000%7
BR&f(vE)ESERAT The PRC (note) Registered and Registered and - - 100 100 Watch trading
(Oriental Watch (China) paid-up capital paid-up capital
Trading Co., Ltd.) US$54,000,000 US854,000,000
Rrxf(RE) ERERAR wE (i) EMREHER AMREEER ERAH
54,000,000 %7 54,000,000%7
RNt Japan Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - —  Property investment
JPY10,000,000 JPY10,000,000
A% EER10000000RE  £E1K100000008E hERE
Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the Mt - ZEDRIRFEUINEEERRZ
form of wholly foreign-owned enterprise. KL »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE—E-_NF=F=+—HILFE

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. TEMBAT (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EREIAAFRESAREIELER
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, SEEERBEEZARTINBAT -
principally affected the results or assets of the BEERA WEINEMHBARZEF
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, & - AlgERERBRnIIE -

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities EHIB A AR F AR S F A frT B R
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time BEAMREERBIES

during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has REBRBPR AR EHAEBMS
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. WIHEBRZHEMMHB AT o KED %
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong EWNBARINES FEEKAELK
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of o ZEMBARI Z EEEBH
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: N

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEK FEEKHE MEAREE

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=HF

Watch trading Hong Kong
TR AR BH 0 1 1
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER 0 6 6
The PRC
i _ 1
6 7
Inactive Hong Kong
EEEx e 7 7
Taiwan
aE 1 1
8 8
15 16

188 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited R A X7 B B R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_E-_WFE=A=+—HIFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel

The key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. The remuneration of directors during
the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits = ER T
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 7

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

37. BEHEALRS
FETEBASHHE

TEEEEBABRARRZIES - F
NZEEMET :

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
110,606 120,403
1,181 1,145
111,787 121,548

EEFHaTMEZEeEEREARX
BRTSBHEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_T-_NFE=F=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR A ZHMBARR T

THE COMPANY

2024 2023
—E_E ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R N 145 182
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIKE 619,279 619,279
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BEATEAEMEE
Wk z AT A 1,589 5,548
621,013 625,009
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURBT B A B I8 629,034 926,443
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 1,259 552
Investment in securities NEEZ7IEE 600 2,595
630,893 929,590
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H i AT AR R 81,589 100,864
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A R I8 527,064 815,073
608,653 915,937
Net current assets REBEEFHE 22,240 13,653
Net assets EEFE 643,253 638,662
Capital and reserves ERXR#E
Share capital &N 48,736 48,736
Reserves (note (a)) & (M5t (a)) 594,517 589,926
Total equity REHBE 643,253 638,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE2_—FE_NFE=FA=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(a)

38. KRB 2R REK (Z)

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the
current and the prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2022

Profit for the year

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
income for the year
2022 final dividend paid
2022 special dividend paid
2023 interim dividend
declared/paid
2023 interim special
dividend declared/paid
2023 final dividend proposed

2023 special dividend proposed

At 31 March 2023

Profit for the year

Change in fair value of
equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
income for the year
2023 final dividend paid
2023 special dividend paid
2024 interim dividend
declared/paid
2024 interim special
dividend declared/paid
2024 final dividend proposed

2024 special dividend proposed
Disposal of equity instruments at

FVTOCI

At 31 March 2024

e R
EngF
BATEF AL M2 AN
RATIAZATEES

ERLERESE

BRE-Z-ZERERE
ORFR-B--EETRE
BEE/BR¥-E-ZF
TERS
BER/BRE-E_ZF
PEERIRE
BEE-E--EXBRE
BRE-E-CERIIRE

RZTZ=E=f=1-A
£
ROV AR SENE
ZBAIRZ
RaTT)

EREENEEE

BER-E-CERIBE
DRE-E-=EETRE
BER/ERE-F-ME
)
EER/ERE-E-ME
PERRIRE
BRE-Z-MERBRE
REE-E-MERTIRE

HERATEF A A 2ENE

LBATE

R-Z-MEZF=1-H

Bt -
(a) AATRERNEFERBEFE Y
HEEN
Share Capital Asset
Share option  redemption  Contributed  revaluation Retained Dividend
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits reserve Total
ROEE BRERE EARORE  GABHR BEEMRE  RERN  RERE At
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$:000
AT AT AT & AT & AT AT
303,250 - 42 122,183 3,680 31934 197,380 658,852
- - - - - 281,076 - 281,076
- - - - (79) - - (79
- - - - (79) 281,076 - 280,997
- - - - - - (48,736) (48,736)
= = = = = — (148644 (148,644)
- — - — - (38,014) - (38,014)
- - - - - (114,529) - (114,529)
- - - - - (36,552) 36,552 -
- - - - - (107,219) 107,219 -
303,250 — 425 122,183 3,601 16,696 143771 589,926
- - - - - 268,134 - 268,134
- - - - (875) — - (875)
- - - - (875) 268,134 - 287,259
- - - — - — (36,552) (36,552)
- - - - - - (107.219)  (107,219)
- — - — — (34,115) — (34,115)
- - - - —  (104782) —  (104782)
— _ - — - (28,267) 28,267 —
- - - - - (83,826) 83,826 -
_ — - — (1,825) 1,825 - -
303,250 — 425 122,183 901 55,665 112,093 594,517

The contributed surplus arose as a result of the
difference between the aggregate net tangible
assets of the subsidiaries by the Company and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares which were
issued to acquire those subsidiaries under the group
reorganisation in 1993.

BABRBEKRRRMERRFAT
BEMEER - AN =FRELE
BERARKBZEHNBARMEIT L
ARBIBMZEECEME ZER

MmEL -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEHE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—RHLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-TF ZE-—F ZE-—F —ZE-=F Rmbdeliges
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 PG €01])
FET FETT FET FET FETT
RESULTS ES
Revenue Iz 2,352,683 3,504,022 3,639,774 3,704,677 3,638,758
Profit before B B A i Al
taxation 127,433 355,736 513,437 440,058 396,474
Income tax expense Fr{5 %R (28,324)  (123,112) (150,461)  (144,534) (145,324)
Profit for the year — E X% F 99,109 232,624 362,976 295,524 251,150
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the ViN/NETE PN
Company 100,301 233,256 362,574 295,432 250,488
Non-controlling JEIE AR R ES
interests (1,192) (632) 402 92 662
Profit for the year F % 99,109 232,624 362,976 295,524 251,150
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—ECEF ZE-—F ZE-—F ZZE-=F gmkdyikes
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 B L€0 1)
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND BEERERE
LIABILITIES
Total assets EEMBE 2,513,621 2,727,530 2,879,275 2,619,258 2,387,475
Total liabilities BEEE (430,335) (736,981)  (843,108) (723,327) (591,508)

2,083,286 1,990,649 2,036,167 1,895,931 1,795,967

Equity attributable R RQFH#HA A

to owners of the FE(EREZS
Company 2,083,611 1,991,495 2,035,007 1,894,745 1,794,170
Non-controlling JEVERR fE RS
interests (325) (946) 1,160 1,186 1,797

2,083,286 1,990,549 2,036,167 1,895,931 1,795,967
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